# **Dell Security Management Server**

Installation and Migration Guide v10.0



### Notes, cautions, and warnings

- (i) NOTE: A NOTE indicates important information that helps you make better use of your product.
- △ CAUTION: A CAUTION indicates either potential damage to hardware or loss of data and tells you how to avoid the problem.
- Marning: A WARNING indicates a potential for property damage, personal injury, or death.

© 2012-2018 Dell Inc. All rights reserved. Dell, EMC, and other trademarks are trademarks of Dell Inc. or its subsidiaries. Other trademarks may be trademarks of their respective owners.

Registered trademarks and trademarks used in the Dell Encryption, Endpoint Security Suite Enterprise, and Data Guardian suite of documents: Dell<sup>™</sup> and the Dell logo, Dell Precision<sup>™</sup>, OptiPlex<sup>™</sup>, ControlVault<sup>™</sup>, Latitude<sup>™</sup>, XPS®, and KACE<sup>™</sup> are trademarks of Dell Inc. Cylance®, CylancePROTECT, and the Cylance logo are registered trademarks of Cylance, Inc. in the U.S. and other countries. McAfee® and the McAfee logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of McAfee, Inc. in the US and other countries. Intel®, Pentium®, Intel Core Inside Duo®, Itanium®, and Xeon® are registered trademarks of Intel Corporation in the U.S. and other countries. Adobe®, Acrobat®, and Flash® are registered trademarks of Adobe Systems Incorporated. Authen tec® and Eikon® are registered trademarks of Authen tec. AMD® is a registered trademark of Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. Microsoft®, Windows®, and Windows Server®, Internet Explorer®, Windows Vista®, Windows 7®, Windows 10®, Active Directory®, Access®, BitLocker®, BitLocker To Go®, Excel®, Hyper-V®, Outlook®, PowerPoint®, Word®, OneDrive®, SQL Server®, and Visual C++® are either trademarks or registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. VMware® is a registered trademark or trademark of VMware, Inc. in the United States or other countries. Box® is a registered trademark of Box. Dropbox <sup>sM</sup> is a service mark of Dropbox, Inc. Google™, Android™, Google™ Chrome™, Gmail™, and Google™ Play are either trademarks or registered trademarks of Google Inc. in the United States and other countries. Apple®, App Store<sup>™</sup>, Apple Remote Desktop<sup>™</sup>, Boot Camp<sup>™</sup>, FileVault<sup>™</sup>, iPad®, iPhone®, iPod®, iPod touch®, iPod shuffle®, and iPod nano®, Macintosh®, and Safari® are either servicemarks, trademarks, or registered trademarks of Apple, Inc. in the United States and/or other countries. EnCase™ and Guidance Software® are either trademarks or registered trademarks of Guidance Software. Entrust® is a registered trademark of Entrust®, Inc. in the United States and other countries. Mozilla® Firefox® is a registered trademark of Mozilla Foundation in the United States and/or other countries. iOS® is a trademark or registered trademark of Cisco Systems, Inc. in the United States and certain other countries and is used under license. Oracle® and Java® are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates. Travelstar® is a registered trademark of HGST, Inc. in the United States and other countries. UNIX® is a registered trademark of The Open Group. VALIDITY™ is a trademark of Validity Sensors, Inc. in the United States and other countries. VeriSign® and other related marks are the trademarks or registered trademarks of VeriSign, Inc. or its affiliates or subsidiaries in the U.S. and other countries and licensed to Symantec Corporation. KVM on IP® is a registered trademark of Video Products. Yahoo!® is a registered trademark of Yahoo! Inc. Bing® is a registered trademark of Microsoft Inc. Ask® is a registered trademark of IAC Publishing, LLC. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.

### Installation and Migration Guide

2018 - 08

Rev. A01

# Contents

1 Introduction	5
About Security Management Server	5
Contact Dell ProSupport	5
2 Requirements and Architecture	6
Security Management Server Architecture Design	6
Requirements	7
Hardware	
Software	9
Language Support for Remote Management Console	
3 Pre-Installation Configuration	13
Configuration	13
4 Install or Upgrade/Migrate	
Before You Begin Installation or Upgrade/Migration	16
New Installation	16
Install Back End Server and New Database	17
Install Back End Server with Existing Database	
Install Front End Server	47
Upgrade/Migration	
Before You Begin Upgrade/Migration	
Upgrade/Migrate Back End Server(s)	59
Upgrade/Migrate Front End Server(s)	
Disconnected Mode Installation	
Install Security Management Server in Disconnected Mode	72
Uninstall Security Management Server	72
5 Post-Installation Configuration	75
DMZ Mode Configuration	75
Server Configuration Tool	
Add New or Updated Certificates	76
Import Dell Manager Certificate	
Import SSL/TLS Certificate BETA	
Configure settings for Server SSL Certificate	
Configure SMTP settings	
Change Database Name, Location, or Credentials	
Migrate the Database	81
6 Administrative Tasks	
Assign Dell Administrator Role	82
Log in with Dell Administrator Role	
Upload Client Access License	82

Commit Policies	82
Configure Dell Compliance Reporter	
Perform Back ups	
Security Management Server Backups	
SQL Server Backups	
PostgreSQL Server Backups	83
7 Ports	84
8 SQL Server Best Practices	
8 SQL Server Best Practices	86 87
<ul> <li>8 SQL Server Best Practices.</li> <li>9 Certificates.</li> <li>Create a Self-Signed Certificate and Generate a Certificate Signing Request.</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>8 SQL Server Best Practices.</li> <li>9 Certificates.</li> <li>Create a Self-Signed Certificate and Generate a Certificate Signing Request.</li> <li>Generate a New Key Pair and a Self-Signed Certificate.</li> </ul>	86 
<ul> <li>8 SQL Server Best Practices</li> <li>9 Certificates</li> <li>Create a Self-Signed Certificate and Generate a Certificate Signing Request</li> <li>Generate a New Key Pair and a Self-Signed Certificate</li> <li>Request a Signed Certificate from a Certificate Authority</li> </ul>	86 87 87 87 87
<ul> <li>8 SQL Server Best Practices.</li> <li>9 Certificates.</li> <li>Create a Self-Signed Certificate and Generate a Certificate Signing Request.</li> <li>Generate a New Key Pair and a Self-Signed Certificate.</li> <li>Request a Signed Certificate from a Certificate Authority.</li> <li>Import a Root Certificate.</li> </ul>	86 87 87 87 88 88
8 SQL Server Best Practices 9 Certificates Create a Self-Signed Certificate and Generate a Certificate Signing Request Generate a New Key Pair and a Self-Signed Certificate Request a Signed Certificate from a Certificate Authority Import a Root Certificate Example Method to Request a Certificate	86 87 87 87 88 89 89
<ul> <li>8 SQL Server Best Practices</li> <li>9 Certificates</li> <li>Create a Self-Signed Certificate and Generate a Certificate Signing Request</li> <li>Generate a New Key Pair and a Self-Signed Certificate</li></ul>	86 87 87 87 87 87 87 89 89 

## **About Security Management Server**

The Security Management Server has the following features:

- · Centralized management of devices, users, and security policy
- · Centralized compliance auditing and reporting
- · Separation of administrative duties
- · Role-based security policy creation and management
- · Distributes security policies when clients connect
- · Administrator-assisted device recovery
- · Trusted paths for communication between components
- · Unique encryption key generation and automatic secure key escrow

### **Contact Dell ProSupport**

Call 877-459-7304, extension 4310039 for 24x7 phone support for your Dell product.

Additionally, online support for Dell products is available at dell.com/support. Online support includes drivers, manuals, technical advisories, FAQs, and emerging issues.

Be sure to help us quickly connect you to the right technical expert by having your Service Tag or Express Service Code available when you call.

For phone numbers outside of the United States, see Dell ProSupport International Phone Numbers.

This section details hardware and software requirements and architecture design recommendations for Dell Security Management Server implementation.

## Security Management Server Architecture Design

The Dell Encryption, Endpoint Security Suite Enterprise, and Data Guardian solutions are highly scalable products, based on the number of endpoints targeted for encryption in your organization.

### Architecture Components

Below are suggested hardware configurations that suit most environments.

### Security Management Server

- · OS: MS Windows 2012R2 Standard (x64), or greater
- · Virtual/Physical Machine
- CPU: 4 Core(s)
- RAM: 16.00 GB
- Drive C: 50 GB (Free Space)

### Proxy Server

- · OS: MS Windows 2012R2 Standard (x64), or greater
- · Virtual/Physical Machine
- · CPU: 2 Core(s)
- · RAM: 8.00 GB
- · Drive C: 20 GB (Free Space)

### SQL Server Hardware Specs

- · CPU: 4 Core(s)
- · RAM: 24.00 GB
- Drive C: 100 -150 GB (Free Space)

Below is a basic deployment for the Dell Security Management Server.



() NOTE: If the organization has more than 20,000 endpoints, please contact Dell ProSupport for assistance.

## Requirements

The hardware and software prerequisites for installing the Security Management Server software are included below.

Before beginning installation, ensure that all patches and updates are applied to the servers used for installation.

### Hardware

The following table details the *minimum* hardware requirements for Security Management Server see Security Management Server Architecture Design for additional information about scaling based on the size of your deployment.

#### Hardware Requirements

#### Processor

Modern Quad-Core CPU (1.5 GHz+)

### RAM

16GB

### Free Disk Space

20GB of free disk space

() NOTE: Up to 10GB may be consumed for a local event database stored within PostgreSQL

### **Network Card**

10/100/1000 or better

### Miscellaneous

IPv4 or IPv6 or Hybrid IPv4/IPv6 environment required

### Virtualization

The Security Management Server can be installed in a virtual environment. Only the following environments are recommended.

Security Management Server v10.0 has been validated on the following platforms.

Hyper-V Server installed as a Full or Core installation or as a role in Windows Server 2012 and Windows Server 2016.

- · Hyper-V Server
  - 64-bit x86 CPU required
  - Host computer with at least two cores
  - 8 GB RAM minimum recommended
  - Hardware must conform to minimum Hyper-V requirements
  - 4 GB minimum RAM for dedicated image resource
  - Must be run as a Generation 1 Virtual Machine
  - See https://technet.microsoft.com/en-us/library/hh923062.aspx for more information

Security Management Server v10.0 has been validated with VMware ESXi 5.5, VMware ESXi 6.0, and VMware ESXi 6.5.

### (i) NOTE: When running VMware ESXi and Windows Server 2012 R2 or Windows Server 2016, VMXNET3 Ethernet Adapters are recommended.

- VMware ESXi 5.5
  - 64-bit x86 CPU required
  - 8 Installation and Migration Guide v10.0 Requirements and Architecture

- Host computer with at least two cores
- 8 GB RAM minimum recommended
- See http://www.vmware.com/resources/compatibility/search.php for a complete list of supported Host Operating Systems
- Hardware must conform to minimum VMware requirements
- 4 GB minimum RAM for dedicated image resource
- See http://pubs.vmware.com/vsphere-55/index.jsp for more information
- VMware ESXi 6.0
  - 64-bit x86 CPU required
  - Host computer with at least two cores
  - 8 GB RAM minimum recommended
  - See http://www.vmware.com/resources/compatibility/search.php for a complete list of supported Host Operating Systems
  - Hardware must conform to minimum VMware requirements
  - 4 GB minimum RAM for dedicated image resource
  - See http://pubs.vmware.com/vsphere-60/index.jsp for more information
- VMware ESXi 6.5
  - 64-bit x86 CPU required
  - Host computer with at least two cores
  - 8 GB RAM minimum recommended
  - See http://www.vmware.com/resources/compatibility/search.php for a complete list of supported Host Operating Systems
  - Hardware must conform to minimum VMware requirements
  - 4 GB minimum RAM for dedicated image resource
  - See http://pubs.vmware.com/vsphere-65/index.jsp for more information

### () NOTE: The SQL Server database hosting the Security Management Server should be run on a separate computer.

### **SQL Server**

In larger environments, it is highly recommended that the SQL Database server run on a redundant system, such as a SQL Cluster, to ensure availability and data continuity. It is also recommended to perform daily full backups with transactional logging enabled to ensure that any newly generated keys through user/device activation are recoverable.

Database maintenance tasks should include rebuilding database indexes and collecting statistics.

### Software

The following table details the software requirements for the Security Management Server and proxy server.

- (i) NOTE: Due to the sensitive nature of the data that the Security Management Server holds, and to align with the rule of least privilege, Dell recommends installation of the Security Management Server on its own dedicated operating system or to be a part of an application server that has limited roles and rights enabled to help ensure a secure environment. This includes not installing the Security Management Servers. See <a href="https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/windows-server/identity/ad-ds/plan/security-best-practices/implementing-least-privilege-administrative-models">https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/windows-server/identity/ad-ds/plan/security-best-practices/implementing-least-privilege-administrative-models</a> for more information about implementing the least privilege rule.
- () NOTE: Universal Account Control (UAC) must be disabled when installing in a protected directory. After disabling UAC, the server must be rebooted for this change to take effect.
- () NOTE: Registry locations for Policy Proxy (if installed): HKLM\SOFTWARE\Wow6432Node\Dell
- () NOTE: Registry location for Windows servers: HKLM\SOFTWARE\Dell

### Prerequisites

#### · Visual C++ 2010 Redistributable Package

If not installed, the installer will install it for you.

· Visual C++ 2013 Redistributable Package

If not installed, the installer will install it for you.

Visual C++ 2015 Redistributable Package

If not installed, the installer will install it for you.

- .NET Framework Version 3.5 SP1
- · .NET Framework Version 4.5

Microsoft has published security updates for .NET Framework Version 4.5.

· SQL Native Client 2012

If using SQL Server 2012 or SQL Server 2016.

If not installed, the installer will install it for you.

### Security Management Server - Back End Server and Dell Front End Server

### Windows Server 2008 R2 SP0-SP1 64-bit

- Standard Edition
- Enterprise Edition
- · Windows Server 2012 R2
  - Standard Edition
  - Datacenter Edition
- Windows Server 2016
  - Standard Edition
  - Datacenter Edition

### LDAP Repository

- Active Directory 2008 R2
- Active Directory 2012
- Active Directory 2016

### Management Console and Compliance Reporter

- Internet Explorer 11.x or later
- Mozilla Firefox 41.x or later
- · Google Chrome 46.x or later



#### Recommended Virtual Environments for Security Management Server Components

The Security Management Server can be installed in a virtual environment.

Dell currently supports hosting the Dell Security Management Server or Dell Security Management Server Virtual within a cloud-hosted Infrastructure as a Service (IaaS) environment, such as Amazon Web Services, Azure, and several other vendors. Support for these environments is limited to the functionality of the Security Management Server. The administration and security of these virtual machines will be up to the administrator of the IaaS solution.

Additional infrastructure requirements. Additional infrastructure requirements, such as Active Directory and SQL Server, are still required for proper functionality.

### () NOTE: The SQL Server database hosting the Security Management Server should be run on a separate computer.

#### Database

- · SQL Server 2008 R2 Standard Edition / Enterprise Edition
- SQL Server 2012 Standard Edition / Business Intelligence / Enterprise Edition
- SQL Server 2014 Standard Edition / Business Intelligence / Enterprise Edition
- SQL Server 2016 Standard Edition / Enterprise Edition
- (i) NOTE: Express Editions are not supported for production environments. Express Editions may be used in POC and evaluations only.

### (i) NOTE: Below are the requirements for SQL permissions. The current user performing the installation and the services must have local administrator rights.

Туре	Action	Scenario	SQL Privilege Required	
Back end	Upgrade	By definition, upgrades already have DB and Login/User established	db_owner	
Back end	Restore Install	Restore involves an existing DB and login.	db_owner	
Back end	New Install	Use existing DB	db_owner	
Back end	New Install	Create new DB	dbcreator, db_owner	
Back end	New Install	Use existing login	db_owner	
Back end	New Install	Create new login	securityadmin	
Back end	Uninstall	NA	NA	
Proxy Front end	Any	NA	NA	

### (i) NOTE: If User Account Control (UAC) is enabled, you must disable it before installation on Windows Server 2008 R2 when installing in C:\Program Files. The server must be rebooted for this change to take effect.

During installation, Windows or SQL Authentication credentials are required to set up the database. Regardless of which type of credentials are used, the account must have the appropriate privileges for the action being performed. The previous table details the privileges required for each type of installation. Additionally, the account used to create and setup the database must have its default schema set to dbo.

These privileges are only required during installation to setup the database. Once the Security Management Server is installed the account used to manage SQL access can be restricted to the db\_owner and public roles.

If you are uncertain about access privileges or connectivity to the database, ask your database administrator to confirm these before you begin installation.

## Language Support for Remote Management Console

The Management Console is Multilingual User Interface (MUI) compliant and supports the following languages:

### Language Support

EN - English	JA - Japanese
ES - Spanish	KO - Korean
FR - French	PT-BR - Portuguese, Brazilian
IT - Italian	PT-PT - Portuguese, Portugal (Iberian)
DE - German	

## **Pre-Installation Configuration**

Before you begin, read the Security Management Server Technical Advisories for any current workarounds or known issues related to Security Management Server.

The pre-installation configuration of the server(s) where you intend to install the Security Management Server is very important. Pay special attention to this section to ensure a smooth installation of the Security Management Server.

## Configuration

- 1 If enabled, turn off Internet Explorer Enhanced Security Configuration (ESC). Add the Dell Server URL to Trusted Sites in the browser security options. Reboot the server.
- 2 Open the following ports for each component:

### Internal:

Active Directory communication: TCP/389

Email communication (optional): 25

### To Front End (if needed):

Communication from external Policy Proxy to Message Broker: STOMP/61613

Communication to back end Security Server: HTTPS/8443

Communication to back end Core Server: HTTPS/8888

Communication to RMI ports - 1099

Communication to back end Device Server: HTTP(S)/8443 - If your Security Management Server is v7.7 or later. If your Dell Server is pre-v7.7, HTTP(S)/8081.

Beacon server: HTTP/8446 (If using Data Guardian)

### External (if needed):

SQL database: TCP/1433

Management Console: HTTPS/8443

LDAP: TCP/389/636 (local domain controller), TCP/3268/3269 (global catalog), TCP/135/49125+ (RPC)

Compatibility Server: TCP/1099

Compliance Reporter: HTTP(S)/8084 (automatically configured at installation)

Identity Server: HTTPS/8445

Core Server: HTTPS/8888 (8888 is automatically configured at installation)

Device Server: HTTP(S)/8443 (Security Management Server v7.7 or later) or HTTP(S)/8081 (Pre-v7.7 Dell Server)

Key Server: TCP/8050

Policy Proxy: TCP/8000

Security Server: HTTPS/8443

Client Authentication: HTTPS/8449 (If using Server Encryption)

Client communication, if using Advanced Threat Prevention: HTTPS/TCP/443

### **Create Dell Server Database**

3 These instructions are optional. The installer creates a database for you if one does not already exist. If you would prefer to set up a database before you install Security Management Server, follow the instructions below to create the SQL database and SQL user in SQL Management Studio.

When you install Security Management Server, follow the instructions in Install Back End Server with Existing Database.

The Security Management Server is prepared for both SQL and Windows authentication. The default authentication method is SQL authentication.

After you create the database, create a Dell database user with db\_owner rights. The db\_owner may assign permissions, back up and restore the database, create and delete objects, and manage user accounts and roles without any restrictions. Additionally, ensure that this user has permissions/privileges to run stored procedures.

When using a non-default SQL Server instance, after Security Management Server installation, you must specify the dynamic port of the instance on the Database tab of the Server Configuration Tool. For more information, see Server Configuration Tool. As an alternative, enable the SQL Server Browser service and ensure that UDP port 1434 is open. For more information, see https://msdn.microsoft.com/en-us/library/hh510203(v=sql.120).aspx.

The expected non-default coalition supported for your SQL database or SQL instance is "SQL\_Latin1\_General\_CP1\_CI\_AS" collation.

To create the SQL database and SQL user in SQL Management Studio, choose one:

### Install Visual C++ 2010/2013/2015 Redistributable Packages

4 *If not already installed*, install Visual C++ 2010, 2013, and 2015 Redistributable Packages. If desired, you can allow the Security Management Server installer to install these components.

Windows Server 2008 R2 - http://www.microsoft.com/download/en/details.aspx?displaylang=en&id=5555

### Install .NET Framework 4.5

5 If not already installed, install .NET Framework 4.5.

Windows Server 2008 R2 - https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/download/details.aspx?id=42643

### Install SQL Native Client 2012

6 If using SQL Server 2012 or SQL Server 2016, install SQL Native Client 2012. If desired, you can allow the Security Management Server installer to install this component.

#### http://www.microsoft.com/en-us/download/details.aspx?id=35580

### Optional

7 For a new installation - copy your Product Key (the name of the file is *EnterpriseServerInstallKey.ini*) to C:\Windows to automatically populate the 32-character Product Key in the Security Management Server installer.

ServerManagementEncryptionInstallKey.ini - Notepad –		×
File Edit Format View Help		
[ProductKey]		^
SerialNumber=your 32-digit product key is displaye	d her	°e √

The pre-installation configuration of the server is complete. Continue to Install or Upgrade/Migrate.

# Install or Upgrade/Migrate

The chapter provides instructions for the following:

- · New Installation To install a new Security Management Server.
- Upgrade/Migration To upgrade from an existing, functional Enterprise Server v9.2 or later.
- Uninstall Security Management Server To remove the current installation, if necessary.

If your installation must include more than one main server (back end), contact your Dell ProSupport representative.

### Before You Begin Installation or Upgrade/Migration

Before you begin, ensure that applicable Pre-Installation Configuration steps are complete.

Read the Security Management Server Technical Advisories for any current workarounds or known issues related to Security Management Server installation.

To shorten installation time on Server 2016, add the following exclusions to Windows Defender:

- C:\Program Files\Dell\Enterprise Edition
- · C:\Windows\Installer
- · The file path from which the installer is run

Dell recommends that database best practices are used for the Dell Server database and that Dell software is included in your organization's disaster recovery plan.

If you intend to deploy Dell components in the DMZ, ensure that they are properly protected against attacks.

For production, Dell strongly recommends installing the SQL Server on a dedicated server.

It is best practice to install the back end server before installing and configuring a front end server.

Installation log files are located in this directory: C:\Users\<LoggedOnUser>\AppData\Local\Temp

### **New Installation**

Choose one of two options for back end server installation:

- Install Back End Server and New Database To install a new Security Management Server and a new database.
- Install Back End Server with Existing Database To install a new Security Management Server and connect to a SQL database created during Pre-Installation Configuration or an existing SQL database that is v9.x or later, when the schema version matches the Security Management Server version to be installed. A v9.2 or later database must be migrated to the latest schema with the latest version of Server Configuration Tool. For instructions on database migration with the Server Configuration Tool, see Migrate the Database. To obtain the latest Server Configuration Tool, or to migrate a pre-v9.2 database, contact Dell ProSupport for assistance.

### () NOTE:

If you have a functional Enterprise Server v9.2 or later, refer to instructions in Upgrade/Migrate Back End Server(s).

If you install a front end server, perform this installation after back end server installation:

Install Front End Server - To install a front end server to communicate with a back end server.

### Install Back End Server and New Database

- In the Dell installation media, navigate to the Security Management Server directory. Unzip (DO NOT copy/paste or drag/drop) Security Management Server-x64 to the root directory of the server where you are installing Security Management Server. Copying/ pasting or dragging/dropping produces errors and an unsuccessful installation.
- 2 Double-click **setup.exe**.
- 3 Select the language for installation, then click **OK**.

Dell Se	ecurity Management Se	erver x64 - Inst	allShiel 🗙	
2	Select the language for the ins	stallation from the o	choices below.	
English (United States)				
		ОК	Cancel	

4 If prerequisites are not already installed, a message displays to inform you of which prerequisites will be installed. Click Install.

Status	Requirement
Pending	Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 SP1 Redistributable Package (x64)
Pending	Microsoft Visual C++ 2013 Redistributable Package (x64)
Pending	Microsoft SQL Server 2012 Native Client 11.2.5058.0 (x64)

5 In the *Welcome* dialog, click **Next**.

Bell Security Manager	Welcome to the InstallShield Wizard for Dell Security Management Server x64         Dell Security Management Server x64 Setup is preparing the InstallShield Wizard which will guide you through the program setup process. Please wait.
	< Back Next > Cancel

6 Read the license agreement, accept the terms, then click **Next**.

閿	Dell Security Manage	ment Server x64	- InstallShield	Wizard
Lic P	ense Agreement lease read the following license ag	greement carefully.		Osell
Γ	DELL END USE	R LICENSE AGREEMEN	NT - TYPE A E	^
	THIS IS A LEGAL AGREEMENT B ENTITY) AND DELL PRODUCTS GLOBAL B.V. (SINGAPORE BRA WORLDWIDE SUBSIDIARIES A WHICH GOVERNS YOUR USE O COLLECTIVELY THE SOFTWARE MATERIALS, ONLINE OR ELECT THEREOF, TO WHICH THIS AG	ETWEEN YOU (EITHE L.P., A TEXAS LIMITED NCH), ON BEHALF OF ND AFFILIATES (COLL OF THE SOFTWARE. TH PROGRAM, THE ASSI RONIC DOCUMENTA REEMENT IS ATTACHE	R AN INDIVIDUAL PARTNERSHIP, O DELL INC. AND ITS ECTIVELY, "DeII" O HE SOFTWARE SHA OCIATED MEDIA, F TION, AND ANY CO ED OR OTHERWISE	OR AN R DELL R "DELL"), ALL MEAN PRINTED OPIES
€I	accept the terms in the license ag	reement ense agreement		Print
Install	Shield			
		< Back	Next >	Cancel

7 If you optionally copied your **EnterpriseServerInstallKey.ini** file to **C:\Windows** as explained in Pre-Installation Configuration, click **Next**. If not, enter the 32-character Product Key and then click **Next**. The Product Key is located in the **EnterpriseServerInstallKey.ini** file.

Dell Security Managemen	nt Server x64 - InstallShield	Wizard X
Product Key Enter Product Key		Over
Enter the 32-character Product Key	- X000X - X000X - 1000X	]- <mark>XXXX</mark>
InstallShield	< Back Next >	Cancel

8 Select **Back End Install** and click **Next**.

B Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	
Installation Type Choose the installation type that best suits your needs.	
Please select a setup type.	
Back end Install (Full Dell Security Management Server Installation)	
Front end Install (Proxy Server installation)	
Recovery Installation - Install application files only and attach to an existing database	
InstallShield < Back Next > Cancel	_

9 To install the Security Management Server to the default location of C:\Program Files\Dell, click Next. Otherwise, click Change to select another location, then click Next.

🖞 C	ell Security Manageme	nt Server x64 -	InstallShield	Wizard X
Destination Click No to a dif	on Folder ext to install to this folder, or clo ferent folder.	k Change to install		Deel
	Install Dell Security Managen C:\Program Files\Dell\	nent Server x64 to:		Change
InstallShield		< Back	Next >	Cancel

10 To select a location for backup configuration files to be stored, click **Change**, navigate to the desired folder, then click **Next**. **Dell recommends that you select a remote network location or external drive for backup**.

岁 Dell Security Management Server x64 - Install	Shield Wizard 🛛 🗙
Backup Location Select a back up location	Deell
Select a back up location for the Server configuration files. This back recover from a catastrophic Server failure.	sup is required to
Dell recommends that the back up location is located on a different computer.	
Back up Server configuration files to: C:\Backup\	Change
InstallShield	: > Cancel

After installation, any changes to configuration files, including changes made with the Server Configuration Tool, must be manually backed up in these folders. Configuration files are an important part of the total information used to manually restore the Dell Server, if necessary.

(i) NOTE: The folder structure created by the installer during this installation step (example shown below) must remain unchanged.



11 You have a choice of digital certificate types to use. It is highly recommended that you use a digital certificate from a trusted certificate authority.

Select option "a" or "b" below:

a To use an existing certificate that was purchased from a CA authority, select **Import an existing certificate** and click **Next**.

劇	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard				
Insta requ	all Certificate for client authentication and key est signing				
Select	a digital certificate for this server.				
۲	Import an existing certificate				
	Import an existing certificate that was purchased from a Certificate Authority.				
C	O Create a self-signed certificate and import it to key store				
	Create a self-signed certificate and import it to key store.				
Dell hi	ghly recommends the use of a digital certificate from a trusted Certificate Authority.				
Click (	Cancel to exit this installer to independently purchase a third-party certificate.				
InstallS	nield				
	< Back Next > Cancel				

Click Browse to enter the path to the certificate.

Enter the password associated with this certificate. The key store file must be .p12 or pfx. See Exporting a Certificate to .PFX Using the Certificate Management Console for instructions.

Click Next.

### ① NOTE:

To use this setting, the exported CA certificate being imported must have the full trust chain. If unsure, re-export the CA certificate and ensure that the following options are selected in the "Certificate Export Wizard":

- Personal Information Exchange PKCS#12 (.PFX)
- · Include all certificates in the certification path if possible
- · Export all extended properties

뻻	Dell Security M	Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	×
Imp requ	ort an existing cer uest signing	tificate for client authentication and key	81)
Pleas	e enter information fo	importing the existing certificate to the key store.	
The p	ath to the certificate:	c:\ Brows	e
		The type of key store required for import is pkcs12 and the key store file should be in the .p12 or .pfx format.	
	Password:		
InstallS	hield	< Back Next > Cance	el

OR

b To create a self-signed certificate, select Create a self signed certificate and import it to key store and click Next.
 At the Create Self-Signed Certificate dialog, enter the following information:

Fully qualified computer name (example: computername.domain.com)

Organization

Organizational Unit (example: Security)

City

State (full name)

Country: Two-letter country abbreviation

Click Next.

(i) NOTE: The certificate expires in 10 years, by default.

Create Self-Signed certificate for clie	nt authentication	and key request si	
Please enter information that will be incorp	porated into your se	alf-signed certificate.	
Fully-qualified Computer Name:	1		
	* Required		
Organization:			
Organizational Unit:			
City/Municipality:			
State/Province:	ŀ	Country (2 lette	er abbrv:) US
stallShield			
INTERPORT OF THE INTERPORT			

12 For Server Encryption, you have a choice of digital certificate types to use. It is highly recommended that you use a digital certificate from a trusted certificate authority.

Select option "a" or "b" below:

a To use an existing certificate that was purchased from a CA authority, select **Import an existing certificate** and click **Next**.

😥 Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
Install Certificate to Use When Encrypting a Server
Select a digital certificate to use when encrypting a server.
<ul> <li>Import an existing certificate</li> </ul>
Import an existing certificate that was purchased from a Certificate Authority.
O Create a self-signed certificate and import it to key store
Create a self-signed certificate and import it to key store.
Dell highly recommends the use of a digital certificate from a trusted Certificate Authority.
Click Cancel to exit this installer to independently purchase a third-party certificate.
InstallShield
< Back Next > Cancel

Click **Browse** to enter the path to the certificate.

Enter the password associated with this certificate. The key store file must be .p12 or pfx. See Exporting a Certificate to .PFX Using the Certificate Management Console for instructions.

Click Next.

### () NOTE:

To use this setting, the exported CA certificate being imported must have the full trust chain. If unsure, re-export the CA certificate and ensure that the following options are selected in the "Certificate Export Wizard":

- Personal Information Exchange PKCS#12 (.PFX)
- · Include all certificates in the certification path if possible
- · Export all extended properties

岁 Dell Security	Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	x
Import an existing cert Import an existing certif	tificate to use when encrypting a server ficate for use when encrypting a server.	*1)
Please enter information fo	r importing the existing certificate to the key store.	
The path to the certificate:	c:\ Brows	e
	The type of key store required for import is pkcs12 and the key store file should be in the .p12 or .pfx format.	
Password:		
InstallShield		
	< Back Next > Cance	el

OR

b To create a self-signed certificate, select Create a self signed certificate and import it to key store and click Next.
 At the Create Self-Signed Certificate dialog, enter the following information:

Fully qualified computer name (example: computername.domain.com)

Organization

Organizational Unit (example: Security)

City

State (full name)

Country: Two-letter country abbreviation

Click Next.



Create Self-Signed certificate for clier	nt authenticatio	n and key request si	gning (Dell)
Please enter information that will be incorp	oorated into your s	elf-signed certificate.	$\smile$
Fully-qualified Computer Name:	1		
	* Required		
Organization:			
Organizational Unit:			
City/Municipality:			
State/Province:	ŀ	Country (2 lette	er abbrv:) US
TestallChield			
unardu aruend	2		1

- 13 From the Back End Server Install Setup dialog, you can view or edit hostnames and ports.
  - To accept the default hostnames and ports, in the Back End Server Install Setup dialog, click Next.
  - If you are using a front end server, select Works with Front End to communicate with clients internally in your network or externally in the DMZ and enter the front end Security Server hostname (for example, server.domain.com).

闄	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
Bac	k End Server Install Setup
	Select ports and host names for back end server
Clic cor	k below to inspect or change host and port configuration. Select "Next" to accept the figuration. Values are initialized to defaults.
	Edit Hostnames
	Edit Ports
Fro	Works with Front End to communicate wth clients internally in your network or externally in the DMZ.  Int End Security Server  Internal Point
Г	8443
Installs	Shield
	< Back Next > Cancel

• To view or edit hostnames, click **Edit Hostnames**. Edit hostnames only if necessary. Dell recommends using the defaults.

(i) NOTE: A hostname cannot contain an underscore character ("\_").

Dell Security Management	Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
Edit Back End Hostnames	Deel
Core Server	server.domain.com
Compatibility Server	server.domain.com
Compliance Reporter	server.domain.com
Device Server	server.domain.com
Key Server	server.domain.com
Security Server	server.domain.com
Policy Proxy	(Not applicable)
SMTP	server.domain.com
Message Broker	server.domain.com
InstallShield	
	OK Cancel

• To view or edit Ports, click Edit Ports. Edit ports only if necessary. Dell recommends using the defaults. When finished, click OK.

Dell Security	Manageme	ent Server x64 - InstallShie	eld Wizard
Edit Back End Ports			Dell
			$\cup$
		Port	
Client Authentication	8449	Compatibility Server	1099
Compliance Reporter	8084		
Core Server	8888	Device Server	8081
Key Server	8050	- Policy Proxy	8000
Security Server	8443	- SMTP	25
	TCP Port	Stomp Port	
Message Broker	61616	61613	
*			
InstaliShield		OF	Cancel
		UK	Cancel

#### 14 To create a new database, follow these steps:

- a Click **Browse** to select the server on which to install the database.
- b Select the authentication method for the installer to use to set up the Dell Servery database. After installation, the installed product does not use the credentials specified here.

#### · Windows authentication credentials of current user

If you choose Windows Authentication, the same credentials that were used to log in to Windows are used for authentication (*User Name* and *Password* are not editable). Ensure that the account has system administrator rights and the ability to manage the SQL Server.

😥 Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
Database and Install-time Credentials           Specify SQL Server and install-time authentication credentials for the installer to use
The installer uses these credentials to authenticate to the SQL server. These permissions are required: create database, add user, assign permissions. The installed Dell Security Management Server does not use these credentials. They are used only during installation.
Database server to use: (i.e. ServerName\InstanceName)
sql2k12 V Browse Port:
The permissions required by the installer depend on whether or not your SQL database catalog and login have already been created. SQL administrator permissions are needed to create a new database or login. If your DB Administrator has already created a database catalog and login, then the installer only requires db_owner permission.
Database catalog action
My database catalog has already been created
Create new database catalog
SQL login action
Create new SQL Server login
Install-time credentials (not run-time):
Windows authentication credentials of current user
$\bigcirc$ SQL server authentication using the credentials below
Login ID: CTDEV2K12\Administrator
< Back Next > Cancel

OR

### · SQL server authentication using the credentials below

If you use SQL authentication, the SQL account used must have system administrator rights on the SQL Server.

The installer must authenticate to the SQL Server with these permissions: create database, add user, assign permissions. c Identify the database catalog:

Enter the name for a new database catalog. You are prompted in the next dialog to create the new catalog.

- d Click Next.
- e To confirm that you want the installer to create a database, click **Yes**. To return to the previous screen to make changes, click **No**.



15 Select the authentication method for the product to use. This step connects an account to the product.

#### Windows authentication

Select Windows authentication using the credentials below, enter the credentials for the product to use, and click Next.

Ensure that the account has system administrator rights and the ability to manage the SQL Server. The user account must have the SQL Server permissions Default Schema: dbo and Database Role Membership: dbo\_owner, public.

These credentials are also used by Dell services as they work with the Security Management Server.

Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
Database and Service Runtime Information           Specify database catalog and authentication credentials for the services to use
Name of database catalog:
DDP_Server  Browse
The Dell services require a logon and password to connect to SQL server. The user account must have the SQL server permissions Default Schema: dbo and Database Role Membership: db_owner, public. If you choose Windows authentication, the information will also be used as the "run as" credentials for service startup.
Windows authentication using the credentials below
$\bigcirc$ SQL server authentication using the credentials below
User Name:
Password:
< Back Next > Cancel

OR

### SQL Server authentication

Select **SQL server authentication using the credentials below**, enter the SQL Server credentials for the Dell services to use as they engage with the Security Management Server, and click **Next.** 

The user account must have the SQL Server permissions Default Schema: dbo and Database Role Membership: dbo\_owner, public.

Dell Security Managem	ent Server x64 - InstallShi				
Database and Service Ru Specify database catalog	ntime Information and authentication credentia	Is for the services to us	e		Deel
Name of database catalog:					
Jobr_Server				Ы	owse
The Dell services require a Default Schema: dbo and D will also be used as the "run	logon and password to conn atabase Role Membership: d n as" credentials for service :	ect to SQL server. The Ib_owner, public. If you startup.	user account must choose Windows a	have the SQL : authentication,	server permission the information
O Windows authentication	using the credentials below				
Windows authentication     SOL server authentication	using the credentials below	v			
<ul> <li>Windows authentication</li> <li>SQL server authenticatio</li> </ul>	using the credentials below n using the credentials belov	v			
Windows authentication  SQL server authenticatio  User Name:	using the credentials below n using the credentials below	v			
Windows authentication  SQL server authenticatio  User Name:	using the credentials below n using the credentials belov	v		-	
Windows authentication  SQL server authenticatio  User Name:  Password:	using the credentials below n using the credentials belov	v		ī	
Vindows authentication SQL server authenticatio User Name: Password:	using the credentials below n using the credentials belov	v		]	
Windows authentication  SQL server authenticatio  User Name:  Password:	using the credentials below n using the credentials belov	v		]	
Windows authentication  SQL server authenticatio  User Name:  Password:	using the credentials below n using the credentials belov	v		]	
Windows authentication  SQL server authenticatio User Name: Password:	using the credentials below	v		]	
Vindows authentication SQL server authenticatio User Name: Password:	using the credentials below	v		]	
Windows authentication  SQL server authenticatio  User Name:  Password:  tallShield	using the credentials below	v		]	

16 In the *Ready to Install the Program* dialog, click **Install**.

eady to Install the Program The wizard is ready to begin installi	ation.		Deell
Click Install to begin the installation	•		
If you want to review or change any the wizard.	y of your installation setti	ngs, click Back. Click (	Cancel to exit
allShield			
	1		

A progress dialog displays status throughout the installation process.

🛃 Dell Secu	rity Management Server x64	- InstallShield W	izard	-		$\times$
<b>Installing</b> The prog	Dell Security Management Se ram features you selected are be	rver x64 eing installed.			6	eu)
InstallShield -	Please wait while the InstallSh Server x64. This may take seven Status: Database Schema Creation Updating enterprise policy tem	ield Wizard installs eral minutes. iplates	Dell Security	Managen	nent	
		< Back	Next >	e.		

17 When the installation is completed, click **Finish**.

🕼 Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard					
	InstallShield Wizard Completed				
Deell	The InstallShield Wizard has successfully installed Dell Security Management Server x64. Click Finish to exit the wizard.				
	Show the Windows Installer log				
< <u>B</u> ack <u>Einish</u> Cancel					

Back End Server installation tasks are complete.

Dell Services are restarted at the end of installation. It is not necessary to reboot the Dell Server.

### Install Back End Server with Existing Database

### () NOTE:

If you have a functional Dell Server v9.2 or later, refer to instructions in Upgrade/Migrate Back End Server(s).

You can install a new Security Management Server and connect to a SQL database created during Pre-Installation Configuration or an existing SQL database that is v9.x or later, when the schema version matches the Security Management Server version to be installed.

The user account from which the installation is performed must have database owner privileges for the SQL database. If you are uncertain about access privileges or connectivity to the database, ask your database administrator to confirm these before you begin installation.

If the existing database has previously been installed with Security Management Server, before you begin installation, ensure that the database, configuration files, and the secretKeyStore are backed up and accessible from the server on which you are installing Security Management Server. Access to these files is necessary to configure Security Management Server and the existing database. The folder structure created by the installer during installation (example shown below) must remain unchanged.



- In the Dell installation media, navigate to the Security Management Server directory. Unzip (DO NOT copy/paste or drag/drop) Security Management Server-x64 to the root directory of the server where you are installing the Security Management Server. Copying/pasting or dragging/dropping produces errors and an unsuccessful installation.
- 2 Double-click setup.exe.
- 3 Select the language for installation, then click **OK**.

Dell S	ecurity Management Se	erver x64 - Inst	tallShiel 🗙
ٹ	Select the language for the ins	stallation from the	choices below.
	English (United States)		~
		ОК	Cancel

4 If prerequisites are not already installed, a message displays to inform you of which prerequisites will be installed. Click Install.

Status	Requirement
Pending	Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 SP1 Redistributable Package (x64)
Pending	Microsoft Visual C++ 2013 Redistributable Package (x64)

5 In the *Welcome* dialog, click **Next**.

👹 Dell Security Mana	igement Server x64 - InstallShield Wi 🗕 🗖 🗙
	Welcome to the InstallShield Wizard for Dell Security Management Server x64
Deell	Dell Security Management Server x64 Setup is preparing the InstallShield Wizard which will guide you through the program setup process. Please wait.
	< Back Next > Cancel

6 Read the license agreement, accept the terms, then click **Next**.

Please read the following license agr	eement carefully.	6	en)
DELL END USER APPLI	LICENSE AGREEMENT - TY CATION SOFTWARE	'PE A	^
THIS IS A LEGAL AGREEMENT BE ENTITY) AND DELL PRODUCTS L. GLOBAL B.V. (SINGAPORE BRAN WORLDWIDE SUBSIDIARIES AN WHICH GOVERNS YOUR USE OF COLLECTIVELY THE SOFTWARE F MATERIALS, ONLINE OR ELECTR THEREOF, TO WHICH THIS AGRE	TWEEN YOU (EITHER AN II P., A TEXAS LIMITED PART CH), ON BEHALF OF DELL I D AFFILIATES (COLLECTIVE THE SOFTWARE. THE SOF PROGRAM, THE ASSOCIATI ONIC DOCUMENTATION, A EEMENT IS ATTACHED OR	NDIVIDUAL OR AN NERSHIP, OR DELL INC. AND ITS ELY, "Dell" OR "DELL"), "TWARE SHALL MEAN ED MEDIA, PRINTED AND ANY COPIES OTHERWISE	~
I accept the terms in the license agre	ement	Print	t
I do not accept the terms in the licen	se agreement		
of the net accept the terms in the iden			

7 If you optionally copied your EnterpriseServerInstallKey.ini file to C:\Windows as explained in Pre-Installation Configuration, click Next. If not, enter the 32-character Product Key and then click Next. The Product Key is located in the EnterpriseServerInstallKey.ini file.

Dell Security Manageme	ent Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
Product Key Enter Product Key	Deel
Enter the 32-character Product Key	- 1000X - 1000X - 1000X - 1000X
InstallShield	< Back Next > Cancel

8 Select Back End Install and Recovery Installation, and click Next.

B Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	x
Installation Type Choose the installation type that best suits your needs.	)
Please select a setup type.	
Back end Install (Full Dell Security Management Server Installation)	
Front end Install (Proxy Server installation)	
Recovery Installation - Install application files only and attach to an existing database	
InstallShield 	

9 To install the Security Management Server to the default location of C:\Program Files\Dell, click Next. Otherwise, click Change to select a different location, then click Next.

闄	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShi	eld Wizard
Destin Clic to	a <b>tion Folder</b> dk Next to install to this folder, or click Change to install a different folder.	Osel
C	Install Dell Security Management Server x64 to: C:\Program Files\Dell\	Change
InstallS	nield < Back Next >	Cancel

10 To select a location for backup configuration recovery files to be stored, click **Change**, navigate to the desired folder, then click **Next**. **Dell recommends that you select a remote network location or external drive for backup**.

₿	Dell Security Manageme	ent Server x64 -	InstallShield V	Vizard X
Back Se	up Location elect a back up location			Deel
Se	elect the back up location of the Serv	er configuration reco	overy files.	
C	Server recovery files location: C:\Backup\			Change
Installs	Shield	< Back	Next >	Cancel

After installation, any changes to configuration files, including changes made with the Server Configuration Tool, must be manually backed up in these folders. Configuration files are an important part of the total information used to manually restore the Dell Server.

### (i) NOTE: The folder structure created by the installer during installation (example shown below) must remain unchanged.



11 You have a choice of digital certificate types to use. It is highly recommended that you use a digital certificate from a trusted certificate authority.

Select option "a" or "b" below:

a To use an existing certificate that was purchased from a CA authority, select Import an existing certificate and click Next.
Dell Security Management	ent Server x64	- InstallShield Wizard	x
Install Certificate for client authen request signing	tication and key	(	xell)
Select a digital certificate for this server.			
Import an existing certificate			
Import an existing certificate that was purchased from a Certificate Authority.			
O Create a self-signed certificate and import it to key store			
Create a self-signed certifica	te and import it to k	ey store.	
Dell highly recommends the use of a digital certificate from a trusted Certificate Authority.			í.
Click Cancel to exit this installer to indepe	ndently purchase a	third-party certificate.	
InstallShield			
	< Back	Next > Car	ncel

Click **Browse** to enter the path to the certificate.

Enter the password associated with this certificate. The key store file must be .p12 or pfx. SeeExporting a Certificate to .PFX Using the Certificate Management Console for instructions.

#### Click Next.

### () NOTE:

To use this setting, the exported CA certificate being imported must have the full trust chain. If unsure, re-export the CA certificate and ensure that the following options are selected in the "Certificate Export Wizard":

- Personal Information Exchange PKCS#12 (.PFX)
- Include all certificates in the certification path if possible
- Export all extended properties

뤙	Dell Security M	/lanagement Server x64 - InstallShield Wiza	rd 🗙
Imp req	oort an existing ceri uest signing	ificate for client authentication and key	Deel
Pleas	e enter information for	importing the existing certificate to the key store.	
The p	ath to the certificate:	с:\В	rowse
		The type of key store required for import is pkcs12 and the key store file should be in the .p12 or .pfx format.	
	Password:		
TestallC	4-14		
Installs	rielu -	< Back Next > 0	Cancel

OR

b To create a self-signed certificate, select Create a self signed certificate and import it to key store and click Next.
 At the Create Self-Signed Certificate dialog, enter the following information:

Fully qualified computer name (example: computername.domain.com)

Organization

Organizational Unit (example: Security)

City

State (full name)

Country: Two-letter country abbreviation

Click Next.

(i) NOTE: The certificate expires in 10 years, by default.

Create Self-Signed certificate for clier	nt authenticatio	n and key request si	gning (Dell)
Please enter information that will be incorp	oorated into your s	elf-signed certificate.	$\smile$
Fully-qualified Computer Name:	1		
	* Required		
Organization:			
Organizational Unit:			
City/Municipality:			
State/Province:	ŀ	Country (2 lette	er abbrv:) US
TestallChield			
unardu aruend	2		1

- 12 From the Back End Server Install Setup dialog, you can view or edit hostnames and ports.
  - To accept the default hostnames and ports, in the Back End Server Install Setup dialog, click Next.
  - If you are using a front end server, select Works with Front End to communicate with clients internally in your network or externally in the DMZ and enter the front end Security Server hostname (for example, server.domain.com).

閿	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
Bac	x End Server Install Setup
	elect ports and host names for back end server
Clic cor	k below to inspect or change host and port configuration. Select "Next" to accept the figuration. Values are initialized to defaults.
	Edit Hostnames
	Edit Ports
Ero	Works with Front End to communicate wth clients internally in your network or externally in the DMZ.
Ho	st Port
Г	8443
Installs	hield
	< Back Next > Cancel

• To view or edit hostnames, click **Edit Hostnames**. Edit hostnames only if necessary. Dell recommends using the defaults.

(i) NOTE: A hostname cannot contain an underscore character ("\_").

Dell Security Management	t Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard 🛛 💌
Edit Back End Hostnames	Deel
Core Server	server.domain.com
Compatibility Server	server.domain.com
Compliance Reporter	server.domain.com
Device Server	server.domain.com
Key Server	server.domain.com
Security Server	server.domain.com
Policy Proxy	(Not applicable)
SMTP	server.domain.com
Message Broker	server.domain.com
InstallShield	
	OK Cancel

• To view or edit Ports, click Edit Ports. Edit ports only if necessary. Dell recommends using the defaults. When finished, click OK.

岁 Dell Security	Managemer	nt Server x64 - InstallShie	eld Wizard
Edit Back End Ports			Osert
		Port	
Client Authentication	8449	Compatibility Server	1099
Compliance Reporter	8084		
Core Server	8888	Device Server	8081
Key Server	8050	Policy Proxy	8000
Security Server	8443	SMTP	25
	TCP Port	Stomp Port	
Message Broker	61616	61613	
InstallShield		~	Cancel
		OK	Cancel

- 13 Specify the authentication method for the installer to use.
  - a Click **Browse** to select the server where the database resides.
  - b Select the authentication type.
    - · Windows authentication credentials of current user

If you choose Windows Authentication, the same credentials that were used to log in to Windows are used for authentication (*User Name* and *Password*are not editable). Ensure that the account has system administrator rights and the ability to manage the SQL Server.

閿	Dell Security Management	Server x64 - Install	Shield Wizard	×
SQL Server and Specify SQL Ser	installer credentials ver and install-time authentication creden	tials for the installer to us	se	Deell
The installer uses the use these credentials	ese credentials to authenticate to the SQL . They are used only during installation.	. server. The installed De	ell Security Management Se	rver does not
Database server t	o use: (i.e. ServerName\InstanceName)			
sql2k14		~	Port:	
created. SQL adminis created a database of	trator permissions are needed to create a catalog and login, then the installer only r	a new database or login. equires db_owner permis	If your DB Administrator ha	as already
Database catalog	action			
My database cata Create new datab	log has already been created			
SQL login action				
Use existing SQL	Server Login			
Install-time credentia	ls (not run-time):			
Windows auther	entication credentials of current user			
O SQL server aut	hentication using the credentials below			
Login ID:	CTDEV2K12\Administrator			
Bassword:				
InstallShield				
		< Back	Next >	Cancel

OR

#### · SQL server authentication using the credentials below

If you use SQL authentication, the SQL account used must have system administrator rights on the SQL Server.

The installer must authenticate to the SQL Server with these permissions: create database, add user, assign permissions.

c Click **Browse** to select the name of the existing database catalog.

d Click Next.

14 If the Existing Database Error dialog displays, select the appropriate option.

If the installer detects a problem with the database, an *Existing Database Error* dialog displays. The options in the dialog depend on the circumstances:

- The database schema is from a previous version. (Refer to step a.)
- The database already has a database schema that matches the version currently being installed. (Refer to step b.)
- a When the database schema is from a previous version, select **Exit Installer to end this installation**. Next, you must back up the database.

<b>1</b>	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
<b>Exist</b> Dat	ing Database Error abase previously initialized for Dell Security Management Server x64
1	The database schema version "9.7.0.0", must be migrated to schema version "9.8.2". Back up the database before migration.
	<ul> <li>Choose one of the following:</li> <li>Migrate this database to the current schema.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Proceed without migrating the database. After installation, the database can be migrated with the Server Configuration Tool. For migration assistance, contact Dell ProSupport.</li> </ul>
	$\bigcirc$ Exit Installer to end this installation.
InstallSh	ield < Back Next > Cancel

The following options MUST be used only with the help of Dell ProSupport:

- The Migrate this database to the current schema option is used to recover a good database from a failed server implementation. This option uses the recovery files in the \Backup folder to reconnect to the database, and then migrates the database to the current schema. This option should *only* be used after first trying to re-install the correct version of Security Management Server, then running the latest installer to upgrade.
- The **Proceed without migrating the database** option installs the Security Management Server files without completely configuring the database. Database configuration must be completed later, manually, using the Server Configuration tool and requires further manual changes.
- b When the database schema already has the current version's schema, but is not connected to a Security Management Server backend, it is considered a *Recovery*. If **Recovery Installation** was not selected in this step, this dialog appears:
  - · Select Recovery Install Mode to continue the installation with the selected database.
  - · Select Select a New Database to choose a different database.
  - · Select Exit Installer to end this installation.
- c Click Next.

1	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
<b>Exist</b> Dat	ting Database Error tabase previously initialized for Dell Security Management Server x64
1	The database, schema version "9.8.2.0", is already configured for Dell Security Management Server x64.
	Choose one of the following:
	<ul> <li>Recovery Install Mode to supply the necessary back up files and continue using this database.</li> </ul>
	$^{igodoldoldoldoldoldoldoldoldoldoldoldoldol$
	• Exit Installer to end this installation.
InstallSh	ield
	< Back Next > Cancel

15 Select the authentication method for the product to use. This is the account that the product uses to engage with the database and Dell services.

#### • To use Windows authentication

Select Windows authentication using the credentials below, enter the credentials for the account that the product can use, then click Next.

Ensure that the account has system administrator rights and the ability to manage the SQL Server. The user account must have the SQL Server permissions Default Schema: dbo and Database Role Membership: dbo\_owner, public.

OR

#### To use SQL Server authentication

Select SQL server authentication using the credentials below, enter the SQL Server credentials, then click Next.

The user account must have the SQL Server permissions Default Schema: dbo and Database Role Membership: dbo\_owner, public.

😹 Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	×
Database and Service Runtime Information Specify database catalog and authentication credentials for the services to use	Deel
Name of database catalog:	
DDP_Server	Browse
The Dell services require a logon and password to connect to SQL server. The user account must have Default Schema: dbo and Database Role Membership: db_owner, public. If you choose Windows auther will also be used as the "run as" credentials for service startup.	the SQL server permissions ttication, the information
<ul> <li>Windows authentication using the credentials below</li> <li>SQL server authentication using the credentials below</li> </ul>	
<u>U</u> ser Name:	
Password:	
InstallShield	
< Back Next	> Cancel

16 In the *Ready to Install the Program* dialog, click **Install**.

allation setting	s, click Back. Click C	ancel to exit
allation setting:	s, click Back. Click C	ancel to exit
27		
	lack	Back Install

A progress dialog displays status throughout the installation process.

💋 Dell Secu	urity Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard 🛛 — 🗌 🛛 🕹
Installing The prog	Dell Security Management Server x64 ram features you selected are being installed.
1	Please wait while the InstallShield Wizard installs Dell Security Management Server x64. This may take several minutes. Status: Database Schema Creation Updating enterprise policy templates
InstallShield -	< Back Next >

When the installation is completed, click **Finish**.

🕼 Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard		
	InstallShield Wizard Completed	
Deell	The InstallShield Wizard has successfully installed Dell Security Management Server x64. Click Finish to exit the wizard.	
	Show the Windows Installer log	
	< <u>B</u> ack <b>Einish</b> Cancel	

Back end server installation tasks are complete.

Dell Services are restarted at the end of installation. It is not necessary to reboot the server.

# **Install Front End Server**

Front end server installation provides a front end (DMZ mode) option for use with Security Management Server. If you intend to deploy Dell components in the DMZ, ensure that they are properly protected against attacks.

(i) NOTE: The Beacon service is installed as part of this installation to support Data Guardian callback beacon, which inserts a callback beacon into every file protected by Data Guardian when allowing or enforcing Protected Office Documents within the environment. This allows communication between any device in any location and the front end server. Ensure that necessary network security is configured before using the callback beacon.

To perform this installation, you need the fully qualified hostname of the DMZ server.

- In the Dell installation media, navigate to the Security Management Server directory. Unzip (DO NOT copy/paste or drag/drop) Security Management Server-x64 to the root directory of the server where you are installing Security Management Server. Copying/ pasting or dragging/dropping produces errors and an unsuccessful installation.
- 2 Double-click **setup.exe**.
- 3 Select the language for installation, then click **OK**.

Dell Se	ecurity Management Server	x64 - Inst	allShiel 🗙
ٹ	Select the language for the installation	on from the o	choices below.
	English (United States)		~
		ОК	Cancel

4 If prerequisites are not already installed, a message displays to inform you of which prerequisites will be installed. Click Install.

Status	Requirement	
Pending	Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 SP1 Redistributable Package (x64)	
Pending	Microsoft Visual C++ 2013 Redistributable Package (x64)	
renaing	Microsoft SQL Server 2012 Native Client 11.2.5058.0 (X64)	

5 Click **Next** in the Welcome dialog.

Bell Security Managen	Welcome to the InstallShield Wi       -       -       -       ×         Welcome to the InstallShield Wizard for Dell Security Management Server x64       -       -       -       -       ×         Dell Security Management Server x64 Setup is preparing the InstallShield Wizard which will guide you through the program setup process. Please wait.       -       -       -       ×
	< Back Next > Cancel

6 Read the license agreement, accept the terms, then click **Next**.

閿	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	x
Lio P	ense Agreement lease read the following license agreement carefully.	*
	DELL END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT - TYPE A APPLICATION SOFTWARE	^
	THIS IS A LEGAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN YOU (EITHER AN INDIVIDUAL OR AN ENTITY) AND DELL PRODUCTS L.P., A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, OR DELL GLOBAL B.V. (SINGAPORE BRANCH), ON BEHALF OF DELL INC. AND ITS WORLDWIDE SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES (COLLECTIVELY, "DeII" OR "DELL"), WHICH GOVERNS YOUR USE OF THE SOFTWARE. THE SOFTWARE SHALL MEAN COLLECTIVELY THE SOFTWARE PROGRAM, THE ASSOCIATED MEDIA, PRINTED MATERIALS, ONLINE OR ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTATION, AND ANY COPIES THEREOF, TO WHICH THIS AGREEMENT IS ATTACHED OR OTHERWISE	>
∎1 ©10	accept the terms in the license agreement Print do not accept the terms in the license agreement	
Install:	Shield < Back Next > Cano	a

7 If you optionally copied your **EnterpriseServerInstallKey.ini** file to **C:\Windows** as explained in Pre-Installation Configuration, click **Next**. If not, enter the 32-character Product Key and then click **Next**. The Product Key is located in the **EnterpriseServerInstallKey.ini** file.

Dell Security Managemen	nt Server x64 - InstallShield	d Wizard
Product Key Enter Product Key		Overt
Enter the 32-character Product Key	_ XXXXX - XXXXX - XXXXX	- XXXX
InstallShield	< Back Next >	Cancel

8 Select Front End Install and click Next.

😥 🛛 Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard 🛛 🗙
Installation Type     Choose the installation type that best suits your needs.
Please select a setup type.
Back end Install (Full Dell Security Management Server Installation)
Front end Install (Proxy Server installation)
Recovery Installation - Install application files only and attach to an existing database
InstallShield < Back Next > Cancel

9 To install the front end server to the default location of C:\Program Files\Dell, click Next. Otherwise, click Change to select another location, then click Next.

岁 D	ell Security Manageme	ent Server x64 -	InstallShield	Wizard X
Destinatio Click Ne to a diff	<b>n Folder</b> xt to install to this folder, or di ferent folder.	ck Change to install		Deel
	Install Dell Security Managen C: \Program Files \Dell \	nent Server x64 to:		Change
InstallShield		< Back	Next >	Cancel

10 You have a choice of digital certificate types to use.

### (i) NOTE: It is highly recommended that you use a digital certificate from a trusted certificate authority.

Select option "a" or "b" below:

a To use an existing certificate that was purchased from a CA authority, select **Import an existing certificate** and click **Next**.

뻻	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard				
Insta reque	Il Certificate for client authentication and key est signing				
Select	a digital certificate for this server.				
۲	Import an existing certificate				
	Import an existing certificate that was purchased from a Certificate Authority.				
0	Create a self-signed certificate and import it to key store				
	Create a self-signed certificate and import it to key store.				
Dell hig	phly recommends the use of a digital certificate from a trusted Certificate Authority.				
Click C	ancel to exit this installer to independently purchase a third-party certificate.				
InstallSh	ield				
	< Back Next > Cancel				

Click  $\ensuremath{\textbf{Browse}}$  to enter the path to the certificate.

Enter the password associated with this certificate. The key store file must be .p12 or pfx. SeeExporting a Certificate to .PFX Using the Certificate Management Console for instructions.

Click Next.

### () NOTE:

To use this setting, the exported CA certificate being imported must have the full trust chain. If unsure, re-export the CA certificate and ensure that the following options are selected in the "Certificate Export Wizard":

- Personal Information Exchange PKCS#12 (.PFX)
- · Include all certificates in the certification path if possible
- · Export all extended properties

Please enter information for	importing the existing certificate to the key s	itore.
The path to the certificate:	c:/	Browse
	The type of key store required for imp pkcs12 and the key store file should be the .p12 or .pfx format.	ort is e in
Password:		

b To create a self-signed certificate, select **Create a self signed certificate and import it to key store and click Next.** At the *Create Self-Signed Certificate* dialog, enter the following information:

Fully qualified computer name (example: computername.domain.com)

Organization

Organizational Unit (example: Security)

City

State (full name)

Country: Two-letter country abbreviation

Click Next.

(i) NOTE: The certificate expires in 10 years, by default.

Create Self-Signed certificate for clie	nt authenticatio	n and key re	quest signing	r Deell
Please enter information that will be incorp	porated into your s	elf-signed cert	ificate.	
Fully-qualified Computer Name:	1			
	* Required			
Organization:				
Organizational Unit:				
City/Municipality:				
State/Province:	·	Count	ry (2 letter abl	brv:) US
to all With our d				
InstallShield				

11 In the *Front End Server Setup* dialog, enter the fully qualified hostname or DNS alias of the back end server, select **Dell Security Management Server**, and click **Next**.

閿	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	x
Fron	nt End Server Setup	
Ente	ter the Fully Qualified Hostname or DNS alias of the Back End Server	
serv	ver.domain.com	
۲	Dell Security Management Server	
0	) Dell Security Management Server Virtual	
InstallS	Shield	
	< Back Next > Cancel	

- 12 From the Front End Server Install Setup dialog, you can view or edit hostnames and ports.
  - To accept the default hostnames and ports, in the Front End Server Install Setup dialog, click Next.

😥 🔹 Dell Sec	urity Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
Front End Serve	r Install Setup
Select ports an	d host names for front end server
Select "Next" to a edit the configura	ccept the default Front End Services. Click on the buttons below to inspect of ition.
	Edit Hostnames
	Edit External Facing Ports
	Edit Internal Connecting Ports
InstallShield ———	
	< Back Next > Cancel

• To view or edit hostnames, in the *Front End Server Setup* dialog, click **Edit Hostnames**. Edit hostnames only if necessary. Dell recommends using the defaults.

### () NOTE:

A hostname cannot contain an underscore character ("\_").

Deselect a proxy only if certain that you do not want to configure it for installation. If you deselect a proxy in this dialog, it is not installed.

When finished, click **OK**.

謾	Dell Security Manag	gement Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	x
Ed	it Front End Hostnames		
	Review or change host informa	tion	1
✓	Core Server Proxy	server.domain.com	
◄	Device Server Proxy	server.domain.com	
✓	Policy Proxy	(Not applicable)	
✓	Security Server Proxy	server.domain.com	
✓	Beacon Service	server.domain.com	
Insta	llShield		_
		OK Cancel	

• To view or edit Ports, in the *Front End Server Setup* dialog, click either **Edit External Facing Ports** or **Edit Internal Connecting Ports**. Edit ports only if necessary. Dell recommends using the defaults.

If you deselect a proxy in the *Edit Front End Host Names* dialog, its port does not display in the External Ports or Internal Ports dialogs.

When finished, click **OK**.

🗒 👘 Dell Security Manag	ement Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	x
Edit External Facing Ports	(	Dest.
Core Server Proxy	8888	
Device Server Proxy Policy Proxy	8081 8000	
Security Server Proxy	8443	
Beacon Service	8446	
InstallShield	OK	ancel
😥 🛛 Dell Security Manag	ement Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	x
Dell Security Manag	ement Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	×
Dell Security Manag	ement Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	X
Dell Security Manag	ement Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	X
Dell Security Manag     Edit Internal Connection Ports     Core Server     Security Server     Message Broker STOMP	ement Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	X
Dell Security Manag     Edit Internal Connection Ports     Core Server     Security Server     Message Broker STOMP	ement Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	X
Dell Security Manag     Edit Internal Connection Ports     Core Server     Security Server     Message Broker STOMP	ement Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	X
	ement Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	X

13 In the *Ready to Install the Program* dialog, click **Install**.

ø	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
Rea Th	ady to Install the Program ne wizard is ready to begin installation.
d	ick Install to begin the installation.
If ex	you want to review or change any of your installation settings, click Back. Click Cancel to kit the wizard.
InstallS	Shield
	< Back Install Cancel

A progress dialog displays status throughout the installation process.

岁 Dell Se	ecurity Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wi 💻 😐 🗴
Installing The pro	g Dell Security Management Server x64 gram features you selected are being installed.
17	Please wait while the InstallShield Wizard installs Dell Security Management Server x64. This may take several minutes.
	Status:
	Installing new services
InstallShield	
tristalishield -	< Back Next >

14 When the installation is completed, click **Finish**.

₿	Dell Security Mar	nagement Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
		InstallShield Wizard Completed
	$\frown$	The InstallShield Wizard has successfully installed Dell Security Management Server x64. Click Finish to exit the wizard.
	Dell	Show the Windows Installer log
		< Back Finish Cancel

Front End Server installation tasks are complete.

# **Upgrade/Migration**

You can upgrade Enterprise Server v9.2 and later to Security Management Server v9.x. If your Dell Server version is older than v9.2, you must first upgrade to v9.2 then upgrade to v9.x.

## **Before You Begin Upgrade/Migration**

Before you begin, ensure that all Pre-Installation Configuration is complete.

Read the Security Management Server Technical Advisories for any current workarounds or known issues related to Security Management Server installation.

The user account from which the installation is performed must have database owner privileges for the SQL database. If you are uncertain about access privileges or connectivity to the database, ask your database administrator to confirm these before you begin installation.

Dell recommends that database best practices are used for the Dell Server database and that Dell software is included in your organization's disaster recovery plan.

If you intend to deploy Dell components in the DMZ, ensure that they are properly protected against attacks.

For production, Dell recommends installing the SQL Server on a dedicated server.

To leverage full capabilities of policies, Dell recommends updating to the most current versions of both the Security Management Server and Clients.

Security Management Server v9.x supports:

- Encryption Enterprise:
  - Windows clients v7.x/8.x

- Mac clients v7.x/8.x
- SED clients v8.x
- Authentication v8.x
- BitLocker Manager v7.2x+ and v8.x
- Data Guardian v1.x
- Endpoint Security Suite Pro v1.x
- Endpoint Security Suite Enterprisev1.x
- Upgrade/Migration from Security Management Server v9.2 or later. (When migrating from pre-v9.2 Security Management Server, contact Dell ProSupport for assistance.)

When upgrading/migrating your Security Management Server to a version that includes new policies that are introduced in that version, commit updated policy after upgrade/migration, to ensure that your preferred policy settings are implemented for the new policies, rather than default values.

In general, our recommended upgrade path is to upgrade/migrate the Security Management Server and its components, followed by Client installation/upgrade.

#### **Apply Policy Changes**

- 1 As a Dell administrator, log in to the Management Console.
- 2 In the left menu, click **Management > Commit**.
- 3 In *Comment* enter a description of the change.
- 4 Click Commit Policies.
- 5 When the commit is complete, log off the Management Console.

#### Ensure that Dell Services are running

6 From the Windows *Start* menu, click **Start** > **Run**. Type *services.msc* and click **OK**. When *Services* opens, navigate to each Dell Service and, if necessary, click **Start the service**.

#### Back Up the Existing Installation

7 Back up your entire existing installation to an alternate location. The backup should include the SQL database, secretKeyStore, and configuration files. Several files from your existing installation are needed after the upgrade/migration process is complete.

### () NOTE:

The folder structure created by the installer during installation (example shown below) must remain unchanged



# Upgrade/Migrate Back End Server(s)

- 1 In the Dell installation media, navigate to the Security Management Server directory. Unzip (NOT copy/paste or drag/drop) Security Management Server-x64 to the root directory of the server where you are installing Security Management Server. Copying/pasting or dragging/dropping produces errors and an unsuccessful installation.
- 2 Double-click **setup.exe**.
- 3 Select the language for installation, then click **OK**.

2	Select the language for the installation from	n the choices below.
5		
	Earlish (United States)	
	(English (United States)	*

4 In the *Welcome* dialog, click **Next**.

B Dell Security Manage	ement Server x64 - InstallShield Wi 🗕 🗖 🗙
	Welcome to the InstallShield Wizard for Dell Security Management Server x64
Deell	Dell Security Management Server x64 Setup is preparing the InstallShield Wizard which will guide you through the program setup process. Please wait.
	<back next=""> Cancel</back>

5 Read the license agreement, accept the terms, then click **Next**.

ø	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wiza	rd 🗙
Lice Pl	ense Agreement lease read the following license agreement carefully.	Osel
	DELL END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT - TYPE A APPLICATION SOFTWARE	^
	THIS IS A LEGAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN YOU (EITHER AN INDIVIDUAL OR AN ENTITY) AND DELL PRODUCTS L.P., A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, OR DELL GLOBAL B.V. (SINGAPORE BRANCH), ON BEHALF OF DELL INC. AND ITS WORLDWIDE SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES (COLLECTIVELY, "Dell" OR "DEL WHICH GOVERNS YOUR USE OF THE SOFTWARE. THE SOFTWARE SHALL ME COLLECTIVELY THE SOFTWARE PROGRAM, THE ASSOCIATED MEDIA, PRINTE MATERIALS, ONLINE OR ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTATION, AND ANY COPIES THEREOF, TO WHICH THIS AGREEMENT IS ATTACHED OR OTHERWISE	L"), AN D
• I e	accept the terms in the license agreement	Print
O I o	do not accept the terms in the license agreement	
	< Back Next > 0	Cancel

6 To select a location for backup configuration files to be stored, click **Change**, navigate to the desired folder, and click **Next**. Dell recommends that you select a remote network location or external drive for backup.

₿	Dell Security Manageme	nt Server x64 ·	InstallShield	Wizard X
Backı Se	<b>IP Location</b> elect a back up location			Deell
Se	elect the back up location of the Serve	er configuration rec	overy files.	
C	Server recovery files location: C:\Backup\		C	Change
ar ibudiis	n 85-14	< Back	Next >	Cancel

The folder structure created by the installer during installation (example shown below) must remain unchanged.



7 When the installer properly locates the existing database, the dialog is filled out for you.

步 Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
Database and Install-time Credentials           Specify SQL Server and install-time authentication credentials for the installer to use
The installer uses these credentials to authenticate to the SQL server. These permissions are required: create database, add user, assign permissions. The installed Dell Security Management Server does not use these credentials. They are used only during installation.
Database server to use: (i.e. ServerName\InstanceName)
sql2k12 V Browse Port:
The permissions required by the installer depend on whether or not your SQL database catalog and login have already been created. SQL administrator permissions are needed to create a new database or login. If your DB Administrator has already created a database catalog and login, then the installer only requires db_owner permission.
Database catalog action
My database catalog has already been created
Create new database catalog
SQL login action Use existing SQL Server Login Create new SQL Server login
Install-time credentials (not run-time):
• Windows authentication credentials of current user
$\bigcirc$ SQL server authentication using the credentials below
Login ID: CTDEV2K12\Administrator
InstallShield

To connect to the existing database, specify the authentication method to use. After installation, the installed product does not use credentials specified here.

- a Select the database authentication type:
  - · Windows authentication credentials of current user

If you choose Windows Authentication, the same credentials that were used to log in to Windows are used for authentication (*User Name* and *Password* are not editable).

Ensure that the account has system administrator rights and the ability to manage the SQL Server. The user account must have the SQL Server permissions Default Schema: dbo and Database Role Membership: dbo\_owner, public.

#### OR

#### SQL server authentication using the credentials below

If you use SQL authentication, the SQL account used must have system administrator rights on the SQL Server.

The installer must authenticate to the SQL Server with these permissions: create database, add user, assign permissions.

b Click Next.

- 8 If the Service Runtime Account Information dialog is not pre-populated, specify the authentication method for the product to use after installation.
  - a Select the authentication type.
  - b Enter the user name and password of the domain service account that Dell services will use to access the SQL Server, and click **Next**.

The user account must be in the format DOMAIN\Username and have the SQL Server permissions Default Schema: dbo and Database Role Membership: dbo\_owner, public.

Specify database catalog and authentication credentials for the service		
	vices to use	
Name of database catalog:		
DDP_Server		Browse
The Dell services require a logon and password to connect to SQL se Default Schema: dbo and Database Role Membership: db_owner, pu will also be used as the "run as" credentials for service startup.	erver. The user account must have iblic. If you choose Windows authe	the SQL server permission ntication, the information
Windows authentication using the credentials below		
SQL server authentication using the credentials below		
yser Name:		
Password:		

9 If the database is not backed up, you <u>must</u> back it up before continuing the installation. <u>Database upgrade cannot be rolled back.</u> Only after the database is backed up, select **Yes**, **the database has been backed up**, and click **Next**.

闄	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
<b>Dat</b> Da	abase Configuration atabase configuration upgrade and migration
	The upgrade and migration configuration for the sql database located on is estimated to take:
	Estimated Time: 00 hrs, 00 mins, 58 secs
	Upgrading the database cannot be undone. Do not proceed unless the database has been backed up.
	$\bigcirc$ No, the database has not been backed up.
	• Yes, the database has been backed up.
InstallS	ield < Back Next > Cancel

10 Click **Install** to begin the installation.

副	Dell Security Manage	ement Server x64	- InstallShield	Wizard X
Rea Th	dy to Install the Program e wizard is ready to begin instal	lation.		Deel
di	ck Install to begin the installatio	n.		
If ex	you want to review or change a it the wizard.	any of your installation s	ettings, click Back.	Click Cancel to
InstallS	hield	< Back	Install	Cancel

A progress dialog displays status throughout the upgrade process.

😸 Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wi 💻 🗖 🗙		
Installing The prog	Dell Security Management Server x64     Image: Constant Server x64       gram features you selected are being installed.     Image: Constant Server x64	
1 <del>1</del> 1	Please wait while the InstallShield Wizard installs Dell Security Management Server x64. This may take several minutes.	
	Status: Stopping Dell Security Management Server Service: Dell Message Broker	
InstallShield -	< Back Next > Cancel	

#### 11 When the installation is completed, click **Finish**.

₿	Dell Security Mar	nagement Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
		InstallShield Wizard Completed
	$\frown$	The InstallShield Wizard has successfully installed Dell Security Management Server x64. Click Finish to exit the wizard.
	DELL	
		Show the Windows Installer log
		< Back Finish Cancel

Dell Services are restarted at the end of migration. It is not necessary to reboot the Dell Server.

The installer performs steps 12-13 for you. It is a Best Practice to check these values to ensure the changes have been made properly.

12 In your backed up installation, copy/paste: <Compatibility Server install dir>\conf\secretKeyStore to the new installation: <Compatibility Server install dir>\conf\secretKeyStore 13 In the new installation, open <Compatibility Server install dir>\conf\server\_config.xml and replace the **server.pass** value with the value from the backed up <Compatibility Server install dir>\conf\server\_config.xml, as follows:

#### Instructions for server.pass:

If you know the password, refer to the example server\_config.xml file and make the following changes:

- Edit the KeyName from CFG\_KEY value to none.
- Enter the plain text password and enclose it between <value> </value>, which in this example is <value>changeit</value>
- · When the Security Management Server starts, the plain text password is hashed, and the hashed value replaces the plain text.

#### **Known Password**

	server_config.xml - Notepad	-		×	<
File	Edit Format View Help				
<enc< td=""><td>cryptedData Id="server.pass"&gt; <ds:keyinfo xmlns:ds="http://www.w3.org/2000/09/xml&lt;br&gt;&lt;ds:KeyName&gt;&lt;mark&gt;none&lt;/mark&gt;&lt;/ds:KeyName&gt;&lt;br&gt;&lt;/ds:KeyInfo&gt;&lt;br&gt;&lt;CipherData&gt;&lt;br&gt;&lt;CipherValue&gt;&lt;value&gt;&lt;mark&gt;changeit&lt;/mark&gt;&lt;/value&gt;&lt;/CipherValu&lt;br&gt;&lt;/CipherData&gt;&lt;br&gt;ncryptedData&gt;&lt;/td&gt;&lt;td&gt;dsig&lt;br&gt;e&gt;&lt;/td&gt;&lt;th&gt;g#"><th></th><td>~</td></ds:keyinfo></td></enc<>	cryptedData Id="server.pass"> <ds:keyinfo xmlns:ds="http://www.w3.org/2000/09/xml&lt;br&gt;&lt;ds:KeyName&gt;&lt;mark&gt;none&lt;/mark&gt;&lt;/ds:KeyName&gt;&lt;br&gt;&lt;/ds:KeyInfo&gt;&lt;br&gt;&lt;CipherData&gt;&lt;br&gt;&lt;CipherValue&gt;&lt;value&gt;&lt;mark&gt;changeit&lt;/mark&gt;&lt;/value&gt;&lt;/CipherValu&lt;br&gt;&lt;/CipherData&gt;&lt;br&gt;ncryptedData&gt;&lt;/td&gt;&lt;td&gt;dsig&lt;br&gt;e&gt;&lt;/td&gt;&lt;th&gt;g#"><th></th><td>~</td></ds:keyinfo>		~		
<				>	

**If you do not know the password**, cut and paste the section similar to the section shown in Figure 4-2 from the backed up <Compatibility Server install dir>\conf\server\_config.xml file into the corresponding section in the new server\_config.xml file.

#### **Unknown Password**

server_config.xml - Notepad	. 🗆	×	×	
File Edit Format View Help				
<pre><encrypteddata id="server.pass"></encrypteddata></pre>				
<pre></pre>			$\sim$	
<		>	- 14	

Save and close the file.

#### () NOTE:

Do not attempt to change the Security Management Server password by editing the server.pass value in server\_config.xml at any other time. If you change this value, you lose access to the database.

Back end server migration tasks are complete.

# Upgrade/Migrate Front End Server(s)

- NOTE: Beginning with v9.5, the Beacon Service is installed as part of this upgrade using the default hostname and port 8446. The Beacon Service supports Data Guardian callback beacon, which inserts a callback beacon into every file protected by Data Guardian when allowing or enforcing Protected Office Documents within the environment. This allows communication between any device in any location and the front end server. Ensure that necessary network security is configured before using the callback beacon.
- In the Dell installation media, navigate to the Security Management Server directory. Unzip (NOT copy/paste or drag/drop) Security Management Server-x64 to the root directory of the server where you are installing Security Management Server. Copying/pasting or dragging/dropping produces errors and an unsuccessful installation.
- 2 Double-click setup.exe.
- 3 Select the language for installation, then click **OK**.

Dell Se	ecurity Management Se	erver x64 - Inst	allShiel 🗙
也	Select the language for the in	stallation from the o	choices below.
	English (United States)		~
		ОК	Cancel
		N3	-

4 If prerequisites are not already installed, a message displays to inform you of which prerequisites will be installed. Click Install.

0 ۵۵ کې	ell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard ell Security Management Server x64 requires the following items to be installed on you imputer. Click Install to begin installing these requirements.
Status	Requirement
Pending	Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 SP1 Redistributable Package (x64)
Pending	Microsoft Visual C++ 2013 Redistributable Package (x64)
	Install Cancel

5 In the *Welcome* dialog, click **Next**.

Dell Security Manager	Welcome to the InstallShield Wi
	< Back Next > Cancel

6 Read the license agreement, accept the terms, then click **Next**.

ø	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard	×
Lio P	ense Agreement lease read the following license agreement carefully,	*1)
	DELL END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT - TYPE A APPLICATION SOFTWARE	^
	THIS IS A LEGAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN YOU (EITHER AN INDIVIDUAL OR AN ENTITY) AND DELL PRODUCTS L.P., A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, OR DELL GLOBAL B.V. (SINGAPORE BRANCH), ON BEHALF OF DELL INC. AND ITS WORLDWIDE SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES (COLLECTIVELY, "Dell" OR "DELL"), WHICH GOVERNS YOUR USE OF THE SOFTWARE. THE SOFTWARE SHALL MEAN COLLECTIVELY THE SOFTWARE PROGRAM, THE ASSOCIATED MEDIA, PRINTED MATERIALS, ONLINE OR ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTATION, AND ANY COPIES THEREOF, TO WHICH THIS AGREEMENT IS ATTACHED OR OTHERWISE	>
● I ○ I	accept the terms in the license agreement Print do not accept the terms in the license agreement	
Install	Shield Shield Cance	ł

7 In the *Ready to Install the Program* dialog, click **Install**.

1	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
Rea Ti	ady to Install the Program for the wizard is ready to begin installation.
d	ick Install to begin the installation.
If ex	you want to review or change any of your installation settings, dick Back. Click Cancel to it the wizard.
_	
Installs	Shield
	< Back Install Cancel

A progress dialog displays status throughout the installation process.

😸 Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wi 💻 😐 🗙				
Installing The prog	Dell Security Management Server x64     Image: Constant Server x64       ram features you selected are being installed.     Image: Constant Server x64			
12	Please wait while the InstallShield Wizard installs Dell Security Management Server x64. This may take several minutes.			
	Status:			
	Installing new services			
InstallShield —	< Back Next >			

8 When the installation is completed, click **Finish**.

1.12.10	Dell Security Man	agement Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
		InstallShield Wizard Completed
	$\bigcirc$	The InstallShield Wizard has successfully installed Dell Security Management Server x64. Click Finish to exit the wizard.
	Dell	Show the Windows Installer log
		< Back Finish Cancel

- 9 Set up the back end server to communicate with the front end server.
  - a On the back end server, go to <Security Server install dir>\conf\ and open the application.properties file.
  - b Locate publicdns.server.host and set the name to an externally resolvable hostname.
  - c Locate publicdns.server.port and set the port (the default is 8443).

Dell Services are restarted at the end of installation. It is not necessary to reboot the Dell Server until Post-Installation Configuration tasks are complete.

# **Disconnected Mode Installation**

Disconnected mode isolates Security Management Server from the Internet and an unsecured LAN or other network. After Security Management Server is installed in Disconnected mode, it remains in Disconnected mode and cannot be changed back to Connected mode.

Security Management Server is installed in Disconnected mode at the command line.

The following table lists the available switches.

Switch	Meaning
/v	Pass variables to the .msi inside the *.exe
/s	Silent mode

The following table lists available display options.

Option	Meaning
/q	No Progress dialog, restarts itself after process completion
/qb	Progress dialog with <b>Cancel</b> button
/qn	No user interface

The following table details the parameters available for the installation. These parameters can be specified at the command line or called from a file by using the property:

INSTALL VALUES FILE=\"<file path>\" "

#### Parameters

AGREE\_TO\_LICENSE=Yes - This value must be "Yes."

PRODUCT\_SN=xxxxx - Optional if you have the license information in the standard location; otherwise, enter it here.

INSTALLDIR=<path> - Optional.

BACKUPDIR=<path> - This is where the recovery files are stored.

## () NOTE: The folder structure created by the installer during this installation step (example shown below) must remain unchanged.

AIRGAP=1 - This value must be "1" to install Security Management Server in Disconnected mode.

SSL\_TYPE=n - Where n is 1 to import an existing certificate that was purchased from a CA authority and 2 to create a self-signed certificate. The SSL\_TYPE value determines which SSL properties are required.

The following are required with SSL\_TYPE=1:

SSL\_CERT\_PASSWORD=xxxxx

SSL\_CERT\_PATH=xxxxx

The following are required with SSL\_TYPE=2:

SSL\_CITYNAME

SSL\_DOMAINNAME

SSL\_ORGNAME

SSL\_UNITNAME

SSL\_COUNTRY - Optional, default = "US"

SSL\_STATENAME

SSOS\_TYPE=n - Where n is 1 to import an existing certificate that was purchased from a CA authority and 2 to create a self-signed certificate. The SSOS\_TYPE value determines which SSOS properties are required.

The following are required with SSOS\_TYPE=1:

SSOS\_CERT\_PASSWORD=xxxxx

SSOS\_CERT\_PATH=xxxxx

The following are required with SSOS\_TYPE=2:

SSOS\_CITYNAME

SSOS\_DOMAINNAME

SSOS\_ORGNAME

SSOS\_UNITNAME

SSOS\_COUNTRY - Optional, default = "US"

SSOS\_STATENAME

70 Installation and Migration Guide v10.0 Install or Upgrade/Migrate

#### Parameters

DISPLAY\_SQLSERVER - This value is parsed to get SQL Server instance and port information.

Example:

DISPLAY\_SQLSERVER=SQL\_server\Server\_instance, port

IS\_AUTO\_CREATE\_SQLSERVER=FALSE - Optional. The default value is FALSE, which means that the database is not created. The database must already exist on server.

To create a new database, set this value to TRUE.

IS\_SQLSERVER\_AUTHENTICATION=0 - Optional. The default value is 0, which specifies that Windows authentication credentials of the current logged on user are used to authenticate to the SQL Server. To use SQL authentication, set this value to 1.

# () NOTE: The installer must authenticate to the SQL server with these permissions: create database, add user, assign permissions. The credentials are install-time credentials, not run-time credentials.

If SQL authentication is used, the following are required:

IS\_SQLSERVER\_USERNAME

IS\_SQLSERVER\_PASSWORD

EE\_SQLSERVER\_AUTHENTICATION - Required. Specify the authentication method for the product to use. This step connects an account to the product. These credentials are also used by Dell services as they engage with the Security Management Server. To use Windows authentication, set this value to 0. To use SQL authentication, set the value to 1.

## () NOTE: Ensure that the account has system administrator rights and the ability to manage the SQL server. The user account must have the SQL server permissions Default Schema: dbo and Database Role Membership: dbo\_owner, public.

SQL\_EE\_USERNAME - Required. With Windows authentication, use this format: DOMAIN\Username. With SQL authentication, specify the user name.

SQL\_EE\_PASSWORD - Required. Specify the password associated with the Windows or SQL user name.

If SQL authentication is used (EE\_SQLSERVER\_AUTHENTICATION=1) the following are valid:

RUNAS\_KEYSERVER\_USER - Set the Key Server "run as" Windows user name in this format: Domain\User. This must be a Windows user account.

RUNAS\_KEYSERVER\_PSWD - Set Key Server "run as" Windows password associated with the Windows user account.

SQL\_ADD\_LOGIN=T - Optional. The default is null (this login is not added). When the value is set to T, if the SQL\_EE\_USERNAME is not a login or user for the database, the installer attempts to add the user's SQL authentication credentials and set privileges to allow the credentials to be used by the product.

Following are hostname parameters. Edit hostnames only if necessary. Dell recommends using the defaults. Format must be server.domain.com.

#### (i) NOTE: A hostname cannot contain an underscore character ("\_").

CORESERVERHOST - Optional. Core Server hostname.

RMIHOST - Optional. Compatibility Server hostname.

REPORTERHOST - Optional. Compliance Reporter hostname.

DEVICEHOST - Optional. Device Server hostname.

KEYSERVERHOST - Optional. Key Server hostname.

#### Parameters

TIGAHOST - Optional. Security Server hostname.

SMTP\_HOST - Optional. SMTP hostname.

ACTIVEMQHOST - Optional. Message Broker hostname.

Following are port parameters. Edit ports only if necessary. Dell recommends using the defaults

SERVERPORT\_CLIENTAUTH - Optional.

**REPORTERPORT** - Optional.

DEVICEPORT - Optional.

**KEYSERVERPORT** - Optional.

GKPORT - Optional.

TIGAPORT - Optional.

SMTP\_PORT - Optional.

ACTIVEMQ\_TCP - Optional.

ACTIVEMQ\_STOMP - Optional.

## Install Security Management Server in Disconnected Mode

The following example installs Security Management Server in silent mode with a progress dialog, using installation parameters listed in the file, C:\mysetups\eeoptions.txt\" "

Setup.exe /s /v"/qb INSTALL VALUES FILE=\"C:\mysetups\eeoptions.txt\" "

# **Uninstall Security Management Server**

- In the Dell installation media, navigate to the Security Management Server directory. Unzip (DO NOT copy/paste or drag/drop) Security Management Server-x64 to the root directory of the server where you are uninstalling Security Management Server. Copying/pasting or dragging/dropping produces errors and an unsuccessful installation.
- 2 Double-click **setup.exe**.
- 3 In the Welcome dialog, click Next.
| 閿 | Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard |  |  |
|---|--|--|--|
|   | Dell   | Welcome to the InstallShield Wizard for Dell<br>Security Management Server x64<br>The InstallShield(R) Wizard will allow you to remove Dell<br>Security Management Server x64. To continue, dick Next. |  |
|   |  | < Back Next > Cancel   |  |

4 In the *Remove the Program* dialog, click **Remove**.

闄	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard
Rer	nove the Program
Ye	ou have chosen to remove the program from your system.
Cl	ick Remove to remove Dell Security Management Server x64 from your computer. After
re	moval, this program will no longer be available for use.
If	you want to review or change any settings, dick Back.
InstallS	Shield

A progress dialog displays status throughout the uninstallation process.

🛃 Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wi 💻 😐 🗙						
Uninstalli The prog	Uninstalling Dell Security Management Server x64 The program features you selected are being uninstalled.					
15	Please wait while the InstallShield Wizard uninstalls Dell Security Management Server x64. This may take several minutes.					
	Status:					
InstallShield						
	< Back Next >					

5 When the uninstallation is completed, click **Finish**.

謾	Dell Security Management Server x64 - InstallShield Wizard		
	Deell	InstallShield Wizard Completed The InstallShield Wizard has successfully uninstalled Dell Security Management Server x64. Click Finish to exit the wizard.	
		Show the Windows Installer log	
		< Back Finish Cancel	

# **Post-Installation Configuration**

Read the Security Management Server Technical Advisories for current workarounds or known issues related to Security Management Server configuration.

Whether you are installing the Security Management Server for the first time or are upgrading an existing installation, some components of your environment must be configured.

# **DMZ Mode Configuration**

If the Security Server is deployed in a DMZ and a private network, and only the DMZ server has a domain certificate from a trusted Certificate Authority (CA), some manual steps are needed to add the trusted certificate into the Java keystore of the private network Security Server.

If a trusted certificate is being used, disregard this section.

# () NOTE: Dell highly recommends the use of domain certificates from a trusted Certificate Authority for both DMZ and private network servers.

For information about updating the certificate for Dell Encryption with an existing certificate in the Microsoft keystore, see <a href="http://www.dell.com/support/article/us/en/19/sln297240/">http://www.dell.com/support/article/us/en/19/sln297240/</a>.

# **Server Configuration Tool**

When configurations to your environment become necessary after you have completed your installation, use the Server Configuration Tool to make the changes.

The Server Configuration Tool allows you to:

- Add New or Updated Certificates
- Import Dell Manager Certificate
- Import Identity Certificate
- Configure settings for Server SSL Certificate
- Configure SMTP settings for Data Guardian or Email Services
- Change Database Name, Location, or Credentials
- Migrate the Database

The Dell Core Server and Compatibility Server cannot run simultaneously with the Server Configuration Tool. Stop the Core Server service and Compatibility Server service in *Services* (**Start > Run**. Type *services.msc*) prior to starting the Server Configuration Tool.

To launch the Server Configuration Tool, go to **Start > Dell > Run Server Configuration Tool** .

The Server Configuration Tool logs to C:\Program Files\Dell\Enterprise Edition\Server Configuration Tool\Logs.

# Add New or Updated Certificates

You have a choice of which type of certificates to use - self-signed or signed:

- **Self-signed** certificates are signed by their own creator. Self-signed certificates are appropriate for pilots, POCs, etc. For a production environment, Dell recommends public CA-signed or domain-signed certificates.
- Signed (public CA-signed or domain-signed) certificates are signed by a public CA or a domain. In the case of certificates that are
  signed by a public certificate authority (CA), the certificate of the signing CA will, usually, already exist in the Microsoft certificate store
  and therefore, the chain of trust is automatically established. For domain CA-signed certificates, if the workstation has been joined to
  the domain, the signing CA certificate from the domain will have been added to the workstation's Microsoft certificate store, thereby
  also creating a chain of trust.

The components that are affected by certificate configuration:

- · Java Services (for instance, Device Server, and so on)
- · .NET Applications (Core Server)
- · Validation of smart cards used for Preboot Authentication (Security Server)
- Importing of private encryption keys to be used for signing policy bundles being sent to Dell Manager. Dell Manager performs SSL validation for managed Encryption clients with self-encrypting drives, or BitLocker Manager.
- · Client Workstations:
  - Workstations running BitLocker Manager
  - Workstations running Encryption Enterprise (Windows)
  - Workstations running Endpoint Security Suite Enterprise

#### Information regarding which type of certificates to use:

Preboot Authentication using smart cards requires SSL validation with the Security Server. Dell Manager performs SSL validation when connecting to the Dell Core Server. For these types of connections, the signing CA will need to be in the keystore (either the Java keystore or the Microsoft keystore, depending on which Dell Server component is being discussed). If self-signed certificates are chosen, the following options are available:

- · Validation of smart cards used for Preboot Authentication:
  - Import the "Root Agency" signing certificate and full chain of trust into the Security Server Java keystore. The full chain of trust must be imported.

#### Dell Manager:

- Insert the "Root Agency" signing certificate (from the self-signed certificate generated) into the workstation's "Trusted Root Certification Authorities" (for "local computer") in the Microsoft keystore.
- Modify the behavior of Server-side SSL validation. To turn off Server-side SSL trust validation, select Disable Trust Chain Check on the Settings tab.

There are two methods to create a certificate - Express and Advanced.

#### Choose one method:

- Express Choose this method to generate a self-signed certificate for all components. This is the easiest method, but self-signed certificates are appropriate only for pilots, POCs, etc. For a production environment, Dell recommends public CA-signed or domain-signed certificates.
- · Advanced Choose this method to configure each component separately.

### Express

- 1 From the top menu, select **Actions** > **Configure Certificates**.
  - 76 Installation and Migration Guide v10.0 Post-Installation Configuration

- 2 When the Configuration Wizard launches, select **Express** and click **Next**. The information from the self-signed certificate that was created when installing the Security Management Server is used, if available.
- 3 From the top menu, select **Configuration** > **Save**. If prompted, confirm the save.

Certificate set up is complete. The rest of this section details the Advanced method of creating a certificate.

### Advanced

There are two paths to create a certificate - Generate Self-Signed Certificate and Use Current Settings. Choose one path:

- Path 1 Generate Self-Signed Certificate
- Path 2 Use Current Settings

### Path 1 - Generate Self-Signed Certificate

- 1 From the top menu, select Actions > Configure Certificates.
- 2 When the Configuration Wizard launches, select **Advanced** and click **Next**.
- 3 Select **Generate Self-Signed Certificate** and click **Next**. The information from the self-signed certificate that was created when installing the Security Management Server is used, if available.
- 4 From the top menu, select **Configuration** > **Save**. If prompted, confirm the save.

Certificate set up is complete. The rest of this section details the other method of creating a certificate.

### Path 2 - Use Current Settings

- 1 From the top menu, select Actions > Configure Certificates.
- 2 When the Configuration Wizard launches, select **Advanced** and click **Next**.
- 3 Select Use Current Settings and click Next.
- 4 At the *Compatibility Server SSL Certificate* window, select **Generate Self-Signed Certificate** and click **Next**. The information from the self-signed certificate that was created when installing the Security Management Serveris used, if available.

### Click Next.

- 5 At the Core Server SSL Certificate window, select one of the following:
  - · Select Certificate Select this option to use an existing certificate. Click Next.

Browse to the location of the existing certificate, enter the password associated with the existing certificate, and click Next.

### Click Finish when complete.

 Generate Self-Signed Certificate - The information from the self-signed certificate that was created when installing the Security Management Server is used, if available. If you select this option, the Message Security Certificate window does not display (the window does display if you select option Use Current Settings) and the certificate created for the Dell Compatibility Server is used.

Verify that the fully qualified computer name is correct. Click Next.

A warning message displays, telling you that a certificate by the same name already exists. When asked if you would like to use it, click **Yes**.

### Click Finish when complete.

 Use Current Settings - Select this option to change a setting on a certificate anytime after the initial configuration of the Security Management Server. Selecting this option leaves your already configured certificate in place. Selecting this option advances you to the Message Security Certificate window. At the Message Security Certificate, select one of the following:

- Select Certificate - Select this option to use an existing certificate. Click Next.

Browse to the location of the existing certificate, enter the password associated with the existing certificate, and click Next.

Click Finish when complete.

 Generate Self-Signed Certificate - The information from the self-signed certificate that was created when installing the Security Management Server is used, if available.

Click Next.

Click Finish when complete.

Certificate set up is complete.

When changes are complete:

- 1 From the top menu, select **Configuration** > **Save**. If prompted, confirm the save.
- 2 Close the Dell Serverr Configuration Tool.
- 3 Click Start > Run. Type services.msc and click OK. When Services opens, navigate to each Dell Service and click Start the service.

### Import Dell Manager Certificate

If your deployment includes Security Management Server remotely-managed clients with Encryption Management Agents, you must import your newly created (or existing) certificate. The Dell Manager certificate is used as a vehicle to protect the private key which is used to sign the policy bundles being sent to Security Management Server remotely-managed clients and Encryption Management Agent. This certificate can be independent of any of the other certificates. Additionally, if this key is compromised it can be replaced with a new key, and Dell Manager will request a new public key if it cannot decrypt the policy bundles.

- 1 Open the Microsoft Management Console.
- 2 Click File > Add/Remove Snap-in.
- 3 Click Add.
- 4 At the Add Standalone Snap-in window, select Certificates and click Add.
- 5 Select Computer Account and click Next.
- 6 At the Select Computer window, select Local computer (the computer this console is running on) and click Finish.
- 7 Click Close.
- 8 Click OK.
- 9 In the Console Root folder, expand Certificates (Local Computer).
- 10 Go to the *Personal* folder and locate the desired certificate.
- 11 Highlight the desired certificate, right-click All Tasks > Export.
- 12 When the Certificate Export wizard opens, click Next.
- 13 Select **Yes, export the private key** and click **Next**.
- 14 Select **Personal Information Exchange PKCS #12 (.PFX)** and then select the sub-options **Include all certificates in the certification path if possible** and **Export all extended properties**. Click **Next**.
- 15 Enter and confirm a password. This can be any password of your choosing. Choose a password that is easy for you to remember, but no one else. Click **Next**.
- 16 Click **Browse** to browse to the location of where you would like to save the file.
- 17 In File Name, enter a name to save the file as. Click Save.
- 18 Click **Next**.
  - 78 Installation and Migration Guide v10.0 Post-Installation Configuration

- 19 Click Finish.
- 20 A message stating that the export was successful displays. Close the MMC.
- 21 Go back to the Dell Server Configuration Tool.
- 22 From the top menu, select Actions > Import DM certificate.
- 23 Navigate to the location where the exported file was saved. Select the file and click Open.
- 24 Enter the password associated with this file and click **OK**.

The Dell Manager certificate import is now complete.

When changes are complete:

- 1 From the top menu, select **Configuration** > **Save**. If prompted, confirm the save.
- 2 Close the Dell Server Configuration Tool.
- 3 Click Start > Run. Type services.msc and click OK. When Services opens, navigate to each Dell Service and click Start the service.

### Import SSL/TLS Certificate BETA

If your deployment includes Server Encryption, you must import your newly created (or existing) certificate. The SSL/TLS Certificate BETA protects the private key which is used to sign the policy bundles being sent to client servers.

- 1 From the top menu, select Actions > Import SSL/TLS Certificate BETA.
- 2 Browse to select a certificate and click Next.
- 3 At the Certificate Password prompt, enter the password associated with the existing certificate.
- 4 In the Windows Account Dialog, choose one option:
  - a To change the credentials associated with the identity certificate, select **Use different Windows account credentials with the** identity certificate.
  - b To continue using the credentials of the account that is logged on, click Next.
- 5 From the top menu, select **Configuration** > **Save**. If prompted, confirm the save.

# **Configure settings for Server SSL Certificate**

In the Server Configuration Tool, click the Settings tab.

### **Dell Manager:**

To turn off Server-side Dell Manager SSL trust validation, select Disable Trust Chain Check.

### SCEP:

If using Mobile Edition, enter the URL of the server hosting SCEP.

### () NOTE: As of v9.8, Mobile Edition is no longer supported.

When changes are complete:

- 1 From the top menu, select **Configuration** > **Save**. If prompted, confirm the save.
- 2 Close the Dell Server Configuration Tool.
- 3 Click Start > Run. Type services.msc and click OK. When Services opens, navigate to each Dell Service and click Start the service.

# **Configure SMTP settings**

In the Server Configuration Tool, click the **SMTP** tab.

This tab configures SMTP settings for Data Guardian, Product Bulletins, notifications, and Advanced Threat Prevention Threat Relay messages.

When configuration changes are complete, restart the Security Server service. The Security Server service must be restarted in order for the settings to be updated.

Enter the following information:

- 1 In Host Name, enter the FQDN of your SMTP server, such as smtpservername.domain.com.
- 2 In User Name, enter the user name to log in to the mail server. The format can be DOMAIN\jdoe, jdoe, or whatever form your organization requires.
- 3 In *Password*, enter the Password associated with this user name.
- 4 In From Address, enter the email address that the email will originate from. This may be the same as the account for the user name (jdoe@domain.com), but it can also be another account that the specified user name has access to send email for (CloudRegistration@domain.com).
- 5 In Port, enter the Port number (typically 25).
- 6 In the Authentication menu, select either True or False.

### () NOTE: The username and password should be left blank if authentication is set to false.

When changes are complete:

- 1 From the top menu, select **Configuration** > **Save**. If prompted, confirm the save.
- 2 Close the Dell Server Configuration Tool.
- 3 Click Start > Run. Type services.msc and click OK. When Services opens, navigate to each Dell Service and click Start the service.

### Change Database Name, Location, or Credentials

In the Server Configuration Tool, click the Database tab.

1 In Server Name, enter the fully qualified domain name (if there is an instance name, include it) of the server hosting the database. For example, SQLTest.domain.com\DelIDB.

Dell recommends using a fully qualified domain name, although an IP address may be used.

2 InServer Portt, enter the port number.

When using a non-default SQL Server instance, you must specify the dynamic port of the instance in *Port:*. As an alternative, enable the SQL Server Browser service and ensure that UDP port 1434 is open. For more information, see https://msdn.microsoft.com/en-us/library/hh510203(v=sql.120).aspx.

- 3 In *Database*, enter the name of the database.
- 4 In Authentication:, select either **Windows Authentication** or **SQL Server Authentication**. If you choose Windows Authentication, the same credentials that were used to log in to Windows is used for authentication (*User Name* and *Password* are not editable).
- 5 In User Name:, enter the appropriate user name associated with this database.
- 6 In Password:, enter the password for the user name listed in User Name.
- 7 From the top menu, select **Configuration** > **Save**. If prompted, confirm the save.

- 8 To test the database configuration, from the top menu, select **Actions** > **Test Database Configuration**. The Configuration Wizard launches.
- 9 At the Configuration Test window, read the test information and click Next.
- 10 If you chose Windows Authentication in the *Database* tab, you can optionally enter alternate credentials to allow the use of the same credentials used to run the Security Management Server. Click **Next**.
- 11 At the Test Configuration window, the results of the Test Connection Settings, Compatibility Test, and the Database Migrated Test display.
- 12 Click **Finish**.

### () NOTE:

If either the SQL database or SQL instance is configured with a non-default collation, the non-default collation must be caseinsensitive. For a list of collations and case sensitivity, see https://msdn.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ms144250(v=sql.105).aspx.

When changes are complete:

- 1 From the top menu, select **Configuration** > **Save**. If prompted, confirm the save.
- 2 Close the Dell Server Configuration Tool.
- 3 Click Start > Run. Type services.msc and click OK. When Services opens, navigate to each Dell Service and click Start the service.

### **Migrate the Database**

You can migrate a v9.2 or later database to the latest schema with the latest upgrade of the server.

In the Server Configuration Tool, click the Database tab.

- 1 If you have not yet backed up your existing Dell Server database, **do so now**.
- 2 From the top menu, select **Actions** > **Migrate Database**. The Configuration Wizard launches.
- 3 At the *Migrate Enterprise Database* window, a warning displays. Confirm that you have either backed up the entire database or confirm that a backup does not need to be made of your existing database. Click **Next**.

At the Migrating Database window, informational messages display the status of the migration.

When complete, check for errors.

- (i) NOTE: An error message identified by <sup>(V)</sup>, signifies that a database task has failed and corrective action needs to be taken before the database can be properly migrated. Click Finish, correct the database errors, and reinitiate the instructions in this section.
- 4 Click Finish.

When migration is complete:

- 1 From the top menu, select **Configuration** > **Save**. If prompted, confirm the save.
- 2 Close the Dell Server Configuration Tool.
- 3 Click Start > Run. Type services.msc and click OK. When Services opens, navigate to each Dell Service and click Start the service.

# **Assign Dell Administrator Role**

- 1 As a Security Management Server Virtual administrator, log in to the Management Console: https://server.domain.com:8443/webui/ . The default credentials are **superadmin/changeit**.
- 2 In the left pane, click **Populations** > **Domains**.
- 3 Click a domain to add a user to.
- 4 On the Domain Detail page, click the **Members** tab.
- 5 Click Add User.
- 6 Enter a filter to search the user name by Common Name, Universal Principal Name, or sAMAccountName. The wild card character is \*.

A Common Name, Universal Principal Name, and sAMAccountName must be defined in the enterprise directory server for every user. If a user is a member of a Domain or Group but does not display in the Domain or Group Members list in the Management, ensure that all three names are properly defined for the user in the enterprise directory server.

The query will automatically search by common name, then UPN, and then sAMAccount name until a match is found.

- 7 Select users from the Directory User List to add to the Domain. Use <Shift><click> or <Ctrl><click> to select multiple users.
- 8 Click Add.
- 9 From the menu bar, click the **Details & Actions** tab of the specified user.
- 10 Scroll across the menu bar, and select the **Admin** tab.
- 11 Select the administrator roles to add to this user.
- 12 Click Save.

# Log in with Dell Administrator Role

- 1 Log out of the Management Console.
- 2 Log in to the Management Console and log in with Domain user credentials.

# **Upload Client Access License**

You received Client Access Licenses separately from the installation files, either at the initial purchase or later if you added additional Client Access Licenses.

- 1 In the left pane, click **Management**.
- 2 Click License Management.
- 3 Click **Choose File** to locate and select the Client License file.

# **Commit Policies**

Commit policies when installation is completed.

To commit polices after installation or, later, after policy modifications are saved, follow these steps:

- 1 In the left pane, click Management > Commit.
- 2 In *Comment*, enter a description of the change.
  - 82 Installation and Migration Guide v10.0 Administrative Tasks

# **Configure Dell Compliance Reporter**

- 1 In the left pane, click **Compliance Reporter**.
- 2 When Dell Compliance Reporter launches, log in using the default credentials of superadmin/changeit.

# **Perform Back ups**

For the purposes of disaster recovery, ensure the following locations are backed up weekly, with nightly differentials. For more information on planning for disaster recovery, refer tohttp://www.dell.com/support/article/us/en/04/sln292355/plan-for-disaster-recovery-and-high-availability-with-dell-security-management-server-dell-data-protection-server?lang=en. For more information on backing up compliance reporter data, refer to http://www.dell.com/support/article/de/en/debsdt1/sln289096/how-to-backup-and-import-custom-compliance-reports-in-dell-security-management-server-dell-data-protection-enterprise-edition-server?lang=en.

### **Security Management Server Backups**

On a regular basis, back up the files that are stored in the location you selected for configuration file backup during installation (step 10 on page 27) or upgrade/migration (step 6 on page 68). Weekly backups of this data are acceptable, since it should rarely change and can be manually reconfigured if needed. The most critical files store information necessary to connect to the database:

<Installation folder>\Enterprise Edition\Compatibility Server\conf\server\_config.xml

<Installation folder>\Enterprise Edition\Compatibility Server\conf\secretKeyStore

<Installation folder>\Enterprise Edition\Compatibility Server\conf\gkconfig.xml

## **SQL Server Backups**

Perform nightly full backups with transactional logging enabled, and perform differential database backups every 3-4 hours. If a backup database is available, then the recommendation would be that transaction logs and/or log shipping tasks be performed in 15-minute intervals (or shorter intervals if possible). As always, Dell recommends database best practices are used for the Dell Server database and that Dell software is included in your organization's disaster recovery plan.

For additional information on SQL Server best practices, see the following list, which should be implemented when Dell Security is installed if not already implemented.

# PostgreSQL Server Backups

Audit events are stored in the PostgreSQL Server, which should be routinely backed up. For backup instructions, refer to https://www.postgresql.org/docs/9.5/static/backup.html.

Dell recommends that database best practices are used for the PostgreSQL database and that Dell software is included in your organization's disaster recovery plan.

7

The following table describes each component and its function.

Name	Default Port	Description	
Compliance Reporter	HTTP(S)/	Provides an extensive view of the environment for auditing and compliance reporting.	
	8084		
Management Console	HTTP(S)/	Administration console and control center for the entire	
	8443		
Core Server	HTTPS/	Manages policy flow, licenses, and registration for Preboot	
	8888	Authentication, SED Management, DitLocker Manager, Threat Protection, and Advanced Threat Prevention. Processes inventory data for use by Compliance Reporter and the Management Console. Collects and stores authentication data. Controls role-based access.	
Device Server	HTTPS/	Supports activations and password recovery.	
	8081	A component of the Security Management Server.	
		Required for Encryption Enterprise (Windows and Mac)	
Security Server	HTTPS/	Communicates with Policy Proxy; manages forensic key	
	8443	communication, and Active Directory for authentication or reconciliation, including identity validation for authentication into the Remote Management Console. Requires SQL database access.	
Compatibility Server	TCP/	A service for managing the enterprise architecture. Collects	
	1099	data during migrations. Processes data based on user groups.	
Message Broker Service	TCP/	Handles communication between services of the Dell Server.	
	61616	for Policy Proxy queuing.	
	and STOMP/	Requires SQL database access.	
	61613		
Key Server	TCP/	Negotiates, authenticates, and encrypts a client connection using Kerberos APIs	
	8050	Requires SQL database access to pull the key data.	
Policy Proxy	TCP/	Provides a network-based communication path to deliver	
	8000	security policy updates and inventory updates.	

Name	Default Port	Description
LDAP	TCP/ 389/636 (local domain controller), 3268/3269 (global catalog)	Port 389 - This port is used for requesting information from the local domain controller. LDAP requests sent to port 389 can be used to search for objects only within the global catalog's home domain. However, the requesting application can obtain all of the attributes for those objects. For example, a request to port 389 could be used to obtain a user's department.
	TCP/ 135/ 49125+ (RPC)	Port 3268 - This port is used for queries specifically targeted for the global catalog. LDAP requests sent to port 3268 can be used to search for objects in the entire forest. However, only the attributes marked for replication to the global catalog can be returned. For example, a user's department could not be returned using port 3268 since this attribute is not replicated to the global catalog.
Microsoft SQL Database	TCP/ 1433	The default SQL Server port is 1433, and client ports are assigned a random value between 1024 and 5000.
Client Authentication	HTTPS/ 8449	Allows client servers to authenticate with Dell Server. Required for Server Encryption.
Callback beacon	HTTP/TCP 8446	Allows a callback beacon to be inserted into each protected Office file, when running Data Guardian Protected Office mode.

# **SQL Server Best Practices**

The following list explains SQL Server best practices, which should be implemented when Dell security is installed if not already implemented.

1 Ensure the NTFS block size where the data file and log file reside is 64 KB. SQL Server extents (basic unit of SQL storage) are 64 KB.

For more information, search Microsoft's TechNet articles for "Understanding Pages and Extents."

- Microsoft SQL Server 2008 R2 http://technet.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ms190969(v=sql.105).aspx
- 2 As a general guideline, set the maximum amount of SQL Server memory to 80 percent of the installed memory.

For more information, search Microsoft's TechNet articles for Server Memory Server Configuration Options.

- Microsoft SQL Server 2008 R2 http://technet.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ms178067%28v=sql.105%29
- Microsoft SQL Server 2012 https://technet.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ms178067(v=sql.110)
- Microsoft SQL Server 2014 https://technet.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ms178067(v=sql.120)
- Microsoft SQL Server 2016 https://technet.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ms178067(v=sql.130)
- 3 Set -t1222 on the instance startup properties to ensure deadlock information is captured if one occurs.

For more information, search Microsoft's TechNet articles for "Trace Flags (Transact-SQL)."

- Microsoft SQL Server 2008 R2 http://technet.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ms188396%28v=sql.105%29
- Microsoft SQL Server 2012 https://msdn.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ms188396.aspx
- Microsoft SQL Server 2014 https://msdn.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ms188396.aspx
- Microsoft SQL Server 2016 https://msdn.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ms188396.aspx
- 4 Ensure that all Indexes are covered by a weekly maintenance job to rebuild the indexes.

# Certificates

This chapter explains how to obtain certificates for use with Security Management Server.

For information on how to configure to configure SmartCard Authentication, see http://www.dell.com/support/article/us/en/19/ sln303783/dell-data-protection-sed-management-smartcard-setup-guide?lang=en.

For information about the minimum requirements to request SSL/TLS certificates for use by the Dell Data Security server, see http:// www.dell.com/support/article/us/en/19/sln307037/dell-data-protection-enterprise-edition-and-virtual-edition-dell-security-managementsever-and-virtual-server-ssl-tls-certificate-minimum-requirements?lang=en.

For information about updating the certificate for Dell Encryption with an existing certificate in the Microsoft keystore, see <a href="http://www.dell.com/support/article/us/en/19/sln297240/">http://www.dell.com/support/article/us/en/19/sln297240/</a>.

# Create a Self-Signed Certificate and Generate a Certificate Signing Request

This section details the steps to create a self-signed certificate for the Java-based components. This process **cannot** be used to create a self-signed certificate for .NET-based components.

Dell recommends a self-signed certificate only in a non-production environment.

If your organization requires an SSL server certificate, or you need to create a certificate for other reasons, this section describes the process to create a java keystore using Keytool.

If your organization plans to use smart cards for authentication, you need to use Keytool to import the full certificate chain of trust that are used in the smart card user's certificate.

Keytool creates private keys that are passed in the format of a Certificate Signing Request (CSR) to a Certificate Authority (CA), such as VeriSign<sup>®</sup> or Entrust<sup>®</sup>. The CA will then, based on this CSR, create a server certificate that it signs. The server certificate is then downloaded to a file along with the signing authority certificate. The certificates are then imported into the cacerts file.

### Generate a New Key Pair and a Self-Signed Certificate

- 1 Navigate to the **conf** directory of Compliance Reporter, Security Server, or Device Server.
- 2 Back up the default certificate database:

Click **Start** > **Run**, and type move cacerts cacerts.old.

3 Add Keytool to the system path. Type the following command in a command prompt:

set path=%path%;<Dell Java Install Dir>\bin

4 To generate a certificate, run Keytool as shown:

keytool -genkey -keyalg RSA -sigalg SHAlwithRSA -alias Del -keystore .\cacerts

5 Enter the following information as the Keytool prompts for it.

### () NOTE:

Back up configuration files before editing them. Only change the specified parameters. Changing other data in these files, including tags, can cause system corruption and failure. Dell cannot guarantee that problems resulting from unauthorized changes to these files can be solved without reinstalling the Security Management Server.

Keystore password: Enter a password (unsupported characters are <>;&" '), and set the variable in the component conf file to the same value, as follows:

<Compliance Reporter install dir>\conf\eserver.properties. Set the value eserver.keystore.password =

<Device Server install dir>\conf\application.properties. Set the value keystore.password =

<Security Server install dir>\conf\application.properties. Set the value keystore.password =

- Fully Qualified Server Name: Enter the fully qualified name of the server where the component you are working with is installed. This fully qualified name includes the hostname and the domain name (example, server.domain.com).
- · Organizational unit: Enter the appropriate value (example, Security).
- · Organization: Enter the appropriate value (example, Dell).
- · City or locality: Enter the appropriate value (example, Dallas).
- State or province: Enter the unabbreviated state or province name (example, Texas).
- · Two-letter country code.
- · The utility prompts for confirmation that the information is correct. If so, type yes.

If not, type no. The Keytool displays each value entered previously. Click Enter to accept the value or change the value and click Enter.

• Key password for alias: If you do not enter another password here, this password defaults to the Keystore password.

### **Request a Signed Certificate from a Certificate Authority**

Use this procedure to generate a Certificate Signing Request (CSR) for the self-signed certificate created in Generate a New Key Pair and a Self-Signed Certificate.

1 Substitute the same value used previously for <certificatealias>:

```
keytool -certreq -sigalg SHA1withRSA -alias <certificate-alias> -keystore .\cacerts -file
<csr-filename>
```

For example, keytool -certreq -sigalg SHA1withRSA -alias sslkey -keystore .\cacerts -file Dell.csr

The .csr file contains a BEGIN/END pair to use during the creation of the certificate on the CA.

#### Example .CSR File

Notepad	
Ele Edit Format Yew Help	
FBEGIN NEW CERTIFICATE REQUEST MIIBUTCCASICAQAWETELMAKGALUEBHMCGKNXCZAJBGNVBAGTANR4MRANDGYDVQQHEWChZG/ MRAWDGYDVQQKEWG1CMXYNS5DMREWCWYDVQLEWhZZXJ2AWN1CZEMMCGSALUEAXMDd2JrM2/ YWQUY3J1ZGFUdHR1C3QubG0jYWAWgZSWDQYJKOZINVCNAQEBBQADGYOAMIGJAOGBAKX9rMN hIVSODXK1yMd85TtrVuVg+VyHFZXdfVTOSADOLIK1+SAEGZFA20a/XCI3THNOHJ222F3VM /xYZZ/ohfPyCrT7VtbJRW/15D1K0B2RF06dR1GDJLS6L1ED470Y6hgFmFCnc5d2thHnk> 1dNk0EvNAGMBAAGGADANBGKqhk1G9W0BAQGFAAOBGQBEJ5AO6TSgVZTTQ89D2faX40]WA2 sPR70n666nrUMn1ufybk0g3Q4USODBgWUBBX8m5h75ICTB//zrj7k+ea7IFp4E+01TaF1+ wRCkm5j0VUEPNFDP5IM36GQX1hKpOSKR45Q5DKR7AZU3SZALF0jk6+/JE04hdA== END NEW CERTIFICATE REQUEST	Rpc29u /udbax /oI02/ teosgm dc2bV3 :nIEV2 -R8UT3
	+

2 Follow your organizational process for acquiring an SSL server certificate from a Certificate Authority. Send the contents of the <csrfilename> for signing.

### () NOTE:

There are several methods to request a valid certificate. An example method is shown in **Example Method to Request a Certificate**.

- 3 When the signed certificate is received, store it in a file.
- 4 As a best practice, back up this certificate in case an error occurs during the import process. This backup prevents having to start the process over.

# Import a Root Certificate

If the root certificate Certificate Authority is Verisign (but not Verisign Test), skip to the next procedure and import the signed certificate.

The Certificate Authority root certificate validates signed certificates.

- 1 Do **one** of the following:
  - Download the Certificate Authority root certificate, and store it in a file.
  - · Obtain the enterprise directory server root certificate.
- 2 Do **one** of the following:
  - · If you are enabling SSL for Compliance Reporter, Security Server, or Device Server, change to the component conf directory.
  - If you are enabling SSL between the Security Management Server and the enterprise directory server, change to <**Dell install dir>** \Java Runtimes\jre1.x.x\_xx\lib\security (the default password for JRE cacerts is changeit).
- 3 Run Keytool as follows to install the root certificate:

```
keytool -import -trustcacerts -alias <ca-cert-alias> -keystore .\cacerts -file <ca-cert-
filename>
```

For example, keytool -import -alias Entrust -keystore .\cacerts -file .\Entrust.cer

# **Example Method to Request a Certificate**

An example method to request a certificate is to use a web browser to access the Microsoft CA Server, which is set up internally by your organization.

- 1 Navigate to the Microsoft CA Server. The IP address is supplied by your organization.
- 2 Select **Request a certificate** and click **Next**.

### **Microsoft Certificate Services**

Fie Edit Ven Fa	vorites Tools Help						
3 tes · 0	R 2 6 /	🔿 Search 🤺 Pavontes	0 2.3	🖌 🖾 · 🗔 🌍	8 3		
Addrew 🍙			4				- D 60
Google -	- C	Gearch • 🥝 曼 🥩	A 247 blocked	of the to a la	work . Anna	Dottone 🍽 🛛 Drá	Mo
Microsoff Conficate	Sinces						Home
Welcome							
You use this web certificate, you wil mail messages, a	site to request a c I be able to secure nd more depending	ertificate for your w sly identify yourself ng upon the type of	eb browser, e-r to other people certificate you	nail client, or othe over the web, sig request.	er secure progran In your e-mail me	1 Once you acquir ssages, encrypt yo	ea Nare-
Select a task: O Retrieve the O Request a c O Check on a	CA certificate or ertificate pending certificat	certificate revocatio	on list				
						Next>	
Done						🙂 Internet	

3 Select Advanced Request and click Next.

### Choose Request Type

File Edit View Pavorites Tools Help	
O tex · O · E C C Ptern + revortes @ 2 . 3 1	
Address 👔	🛩 🛃 So
Coogle - 🗸 🖓 Starth · 🖉 🥱 🕼 247 Noded 🦉 Check · 🔍 Autorix · 🗍	unit 🛐 Optione 🦇 🗍 Units 🌒 Mio 🦜
Microsoft Conflicate Sensions = 1	Eame
Choose Request Type	
Please select the type of request you would like to make:	
O User certificate request.	
Advanced request	
	Next >
Prove	· Technologi

4 Select the option to **Submit a certificate request using a base64 encode PKCS #10 file** and click **Next**.

### Advanced Certificate Request

120		· · · · · · · · · ·	
dêrem (e)		N - 1 - 0 - 1	M 22
uccigie •	C seath . O B the Ga has pooled	A Deck . A THORE . Hartest ENd	paone ** Units @ M
licrosoft Conficate	Services		Home
dvanced Certific	ate Requests		
ou can request a ne certification aut	certificate for yourself, another user, or a compute hority (CA) will determine the certificates that you	r using one of the following methods. Not can obtain.	te that the policy of
<ul> <li>Submit a certif</li> </ul>	cate request to this CA using a form.	De .	
<ul> <li>Submit a certif</li> <li>#7 file.</li> </ul>	icate request using a base64 encoded PKCS #1	0 file or a renewal request using a base6	4 encoded PKCS
<ul> <li>Request a cert You must have an</li> </ul>	ificate for a smart card on behalf of another user nerroliment agent certificate to submit a request for anoti	using the Smart Card Enrollment Station. er user.	
			Next >

5 Paste in the contents of the CSR request in the text box. Select a certificate template of **Web Server** and click **Submit**.

eck • 🔍 Autocink • 🗐 Ellerif 📴 Optione 🕷 🗍 Onlik 👹
Hen
al request generated by an external application
ification authority (CA).
24.22
R

Submit a Saved Request

6 Save the certificate. Select **DER encoded** and click **Download CA certificate**.

### Download CA Certificate

File Edit Ven Fa	vorites Tools Help	
350x · 3 -	🖹 🛋 🐔 🔎 Search 🐈 Pavortes 🥝 🙆 - 😓 🖾 - 🛄 🎱 🖗	3
Addrew ()		S 50
Google -	🖌 💭 Search • 🤣 🥥 🧊 🖓 247 Noded 👋 Check • 🔍 Autocirk	• Statut E Options # Data Data
Microsoft Constraint	Station	Komo
Contrady and a local data of the		Lating
Certificate Issued	d	
The certificate you	requested was issued to you.	
@ DEF	Remoded or O Base 64 encoded	
recta Downlo	ad CA certificate	
Downlo	ad CA certification path	
Done		😨 Internet

7 Save the certificate. Select **DER encoded** and click **Download CA certification path**.

### Download CA Certification Path

File Edit View Pavorit	ites Tools Help	
3 tex · 3 · .	🖹 🖹 🔣 🔎 Search 🐈 revortes 🤣 🍰 - چ 🖾 🛛 🛄 🗳 🐎 🚳	
Address 👔		🐸 🛃 bo
Google -	👻 🖸 Saardh • 🤣 🚭 🤯 🖓 247 Noded 🦉 Check • 🔍 Autobrik • 🗍 21/17 🛃 C	lotione 🤲 🗍 Unix 🏭 No
Microsoft Conflicate Se	enviced and the second s	Eema
Certificate Issued		
The certificate you re	equested was issued to you.	
ODER e	encoded or OBase 64 encoded	
Download Download	d CA certificate	
Sec. 222.0-03		
Done		Sinternet

8 Import the converted signing authority certificate. Return to the command prompt. Type:

keytool -import -trustcacerts -file <csr-filename> -keystore cacerts

9 Now that the signing authority certificate has been imported, the server certificate can be imported (the chain of trust can be established). Type:

keytool -import -alias sslkey -file <csr-filename> -keystore cacerts

Use the alias of the self-signed certificate to pair the CSR request with the server certificate.

10 A listing of the cacerts file shows that the server certificate has a **certificate chain length** of **2**, which indicates that the certificate is not self-signed. Type:

keytool -list -v -keystore cacerts

The certificate fingerprint of the second certificate in the chain is the imported signing authority certificate (which is also listed below the server certificate in the listing).

# Export a Certificate to .PFX Using the Certificate Management Console

Once you have a certificate in the form of a .crt file in the MMC, it must be converted to a .pfx file for use with Keytool when the Security Server is used in DMZ mode *and* when importing a Dell Manager certificate into the Server Configuration Tool.

- 1 Open the Microsoft Management Console.
- 2 Click File > Add/Remove Snap-in.
- 3 Click Add.
- 4 At the Add Standalone Snap-in window, select Certificates and click Add.
- 5 Select Computer Account and click Next.
- 6 At the Select Computer window, select Local computer (the computer this console is running on) and click Finish.
- 7 Click Close.
- 8 Click OK.
- 9 In the Console Root folder, expand Certificates (Local Computer).
- 10 Go to the Personal folder and locate the desired certificate.
- 11 Highlight the desired certificate, right-click **All Tasks** > **Export**.
- 12 When the Certificate Export wizard opens, click Next.
- 13 Select Yes, export the private key and click Next.
- 14 Select **Personal Information Exchange PKCS #12 (.PFX)** and then select the sub-options **Include all certificates in the certification path if possible** and **Export all extended properties**. Click **Next**.
- 15 Enter and confirm a password. This can be any password of your choosing. Choose a password that is easy for you to remember, but no one else. Click **Next**.
- 16 Click **Browse** to browse to the location of where you would like to save the file.
- 17 In *File Name*, enter a name to save the file as. Click **Save**.
- 18 Click Next.
- 19 Click Finish.

A message stating that the export was successful displays. Close the MMC.

# Add a Trusted Signing Cert to the Security Server when an Untrusted Certificate was used for SSL

- 1 Stop the Security Server service, if running.
- Back up the cacerts file in <Security Server install dir>\conf\.
   Use Keytool to complete the following:
- 3 Export the trusted PFX into a text file and document the Alias: keytool -list -v -keystore "
- 4 Import the PFX into the cacerts file in <Security Server install dir>\conf\. keytool -importkeystore -v -srckeystore "
- 5 Modify the keystore.alias.signing value in <Security Server install dir>\conf\application.properties. keystore.alias.signing=AliasNamePreviouslyDocumented

Start the Security Server service.